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L. INTRODUCTION

This is the most recent piece of litigation flowing from the sex crimes
perpetrated by former Penn State football coach Jerry Sandusky. As the Court
undoubtedly knows, in November 2011 Sandusky was charged with sexual abuse
of numerous young boys, over a period of at least 10 years, both on and off Penn
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and two senio r Penn State officials, Athletic Director Tim Curley
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and Senior Vice President Gary Schultz, were simultaneously charged with perjury
and failure to report child abuse. Shortly thereafter, plaintiff Graham B. Spanier

President of Penn State, while continuing as a

was terminated f
paid member of the faculty, and a Separation Agreement (“SA”) between Dr.
Spanier and the University was negotiated and executed. Ex. A to Complaint.

A week later, the University retained the law firm of Freeh, Sporkin &
Sullivan (“the Freeh firm”), headed by former FBI Director and Judge Louis J.
Freeh, to investigate and to report publicly on the allegations of sexual abuse at
Penn State’s facilities and the response of University officials to any knowledge of
Sandusky’s conduct, as well as to make recommendations for changes and

improvements in policies and procedures. See Complaint §{ 8-9, 14. Meanwhile,

the Pennsylvania Attorney General’s investigation into Sandusky’s crimes and the

¢

response to Sandusky’s conduct by University officials continued, the United

States Department of Education began its investigation of possible failure to report



sexual abuse under the “Clery Act,”' and the NCAA expressed its interest in an
investigation of possible violations of its rules. Id. 9 74.

In the course of his investigation, Judge Freeh identified various emails and
other documents from 1998 and 2001 dealing with Sandusky’s behavior with
young boys, some of which had been sent to or by Dr. Spanier. See id. 99 99, 100,
115. Jud ech completed his investigation and issued his report (“the Freeh
Report”) on July 12, 2012. See id. 1 9. On November 1, 2012, the Grand Jury
brought additional charges against Curley and Schultz and Dr. Spanier was
tlure to report suspected child abuse,

and child endangerment. See id. 9 66, 171; Grand Jury’s presentment (Ex. A

hereto).”

' See Press Release, “U.S. Department of Education to Investigate Penn State’s
Handling of Sexual Misconduct Allegations” (Nov. 9, 2011), at
http://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/us—department-education-investigate-penn-
states-handling-sexual-misconduct-alleg (last visited Mar. 28, 2016).

* The Court may consider this fact under Rule 1028(a)(4) because Dr. Spanier
acknowledges in the Complaint that he was “criminally charged” (Complaint ] 66)
and also refers to “his prosecution.” Complaint 9 171. The Court may also take
judicial notice of the grand jury presentment attached hereto as Exhibit A. See 220
P’ship v. Phila. Elec. Co., 650 A.2d 1094, 1097 (Pa. Super. Ct. 1994) (“It is
appropriate for a court to take [judicial] notice of a fact which the parties have
admitted or which is incorporated into the complaint by reference to a prior court
action”); Bykowski v. Chesed, Co., 625 A.2d 1256, 1258 n.1 (Pa. Super. Ct. 1993)
(noting that a court “has the right to take judicial notice of public documents”).
Certain of the charges against Dr. Spanier have been set aside by a Panel of the
Superior Court, but at least one felony charge remains pending. See Docket in

-2-



In this lawsuit Dr. Spanier seeks to recover for alleged harm to his
reputation, flowing not from the Sandusky related emails he sent or received in
1998 and 2001; and not because of his own conduct or lack thereof in response to
what he knew or had been told about Sandusky’s behavior; and not because of the
Grand Jury’s detailed and public description of his alleged crimes; and not because
of Dr. Spanier’s own public statements and interviews; and not because of the
negative press coverage triggered by all of the above. Rather, he now sues Penn
State to recover for “reputational” harm he says has resulted from a handful of
he University or its Trustees, in
breach of the mutual non-disparagement provisions in the SA.

The SA is the sole basis of Dr. Spanier’s 81 page, 245 paragraph Complaint,
much of which parrots the complaint in his case against Judge Freeh an
firm. It is indisputable that while negotiating the SA in November 2011, Dr.
Spanier owed fiduciary duties to the University. During those negotiations, and
prior to agreeing to the terms of the SA, the University did not know of the 1998
and 2001 emails sent to or from Dr. Spanier, or the events documented therein,
regarding his knowledge of and involvement in decisions related to Sandusky’s

conduct with young boys, which formed in part the basis for the sequent

criminal charges against Dr. Spanier.

Commonwealth v. Spanier, No. 304 MDA 2015 (Pa. Super. Ct.) (Exhibit B
hereto).




The University is not contesting on its Preliminary Objections the validity or
enforceability of the SA, or raising other defenses that rest on facts outside the
Complaint. Rather, as shown below, even assuming the SA is valid, Dr. Spanier’s
Complaint, as filed, plainly fails to state any viable claim for breach of contract

and for that reason alone it should be dismissed under Pennsylvania Rule of Civil

II.  STATEMENT OF QUESTIONS INVOLVED

1. Should Counts I-V, alleging breach of contract based on certain
“negative statements

Suggested Answer: Yes

2. Should Count VI, alleging breach of contract for failure to provide
administrative support, be dismissed pursuant to Rule 1028(a)(4)?

Suggested Answer: Yes

3. Should Count VII, alleging breach of contract for failure to pay legal
fees and expenses, be dismissed pursuant to Rule 1028(a)(4)?

Suggested Answer: Yes



III. ARGUMENT

A. STANDARD FOR REVIEWING PRELIMINARY
OBJECTIONS UNDER RULE 1028(a)(4)

The adequacy of a complaint for purposes of a demurrer must be judged on

T3 A ve

the facts as pled. Lerner v. Lerner, 954 A.2d 1229, 1234 (Pa.

(explaining that the test is whether “on the facts averred, the law says with

certainty that no recovery is possible”) (quoted case omitted). In reviewing

reasonable inferences arising from those facts are accepted as true. Wiernik v.

PHH U.S. Mortgage Corp., 736 A.2d 616, 619 (Pa. Super. Ct. 1999). The court is

free to disregard “conclusions of law, unwarranted inferences from facts, opinions,
or argumentative allegations.” Id. Importantly, the court “may consider only such

matters as arise out of the complaint itself: it cannot supply a fact missing in the

complaint.” Binswanger v. Levy, 457 A.2d 103, 104 (Pa. Super. Ct. 1983). A
preliminary objection in the nature of a demurrer should be sustained where, on the
facts as pled, the plaintiff fails to state a valid cause of action. Lerner, 954 A.2d at

1235.



B. THE COMPLAINT FAILS TO PLEAD SUFFICIENT FACTS

TO SUPPORT DR. SPANIER’S BREACH OF CONTRACT
CLAIMS.

This is a breach of contract case. It is axiomatic that the plaintiff in such a
case must plead facts which, if proven, would be sufficient to establish defendant’s
liability. See Lerner, 954 A.2d at 1236 (noting that a complaint must contain
allegations “of all of the facts the plaintiff will event ually have to prove in order to
recover”). To sustain a breach of contract claim, a plaintiff must plead facts to
support each of the following elements: (1) the existence of a contract; (2) a breach

of a duty imposed by the contract; and (3) dama mages. CoreStates Bank, N.A. v,

Cutillo, 723 A.2d 1053, 1058 (Pa. Super. Ct. 1999). The Complaint filed in this
case fails to plead facts that, even if true, would be sufficient to support a finding
of a breach of a duty imposed by the SA, and it should therefore be dismissed
under Rule 1028 (a)(4).

1. The “Disparagement” Counts Should Be Dismissed.

Counts I-V purport to allege breaches by Penn State of the “non-
disparagement” provision in paragraph 13 of the SA. See Complaint  64. The
Complaint repeatedly asserts that Penn State promised not to make “any negative
comments about Dr. Spanier” and to “use reasonable efforts” to cause its Trustees
to refrain from making any such comments. See id. T 2 (the SA prohibits “any

ar

negative statements™); § 158 (the SA prohibits “any negative statements”); q 177



(the SA prohibits “any negative comments”); 9§ 178 (Trustees not to make “any

negative comments”); 11 186-87 (SA prohibits “any negative comments™); 9 196-

97 (SA prohibits “any negative comments”); 208-09 (SA prohibits “an
\ P Y g Js 1\ p y

negative comments”); 9 219-20 (SA prohibits “any negative comments”).

The plain language of the SA, however, does not provide for a blanket

The University will not, and will use reasonable efforts to cause the
members of the Board of Trustees not to, make any negative
comments about Dr. Spanier to the media, to their professional

colleagues or to any other members of the public, unless required by
law or to (‘nmnlv with leoal oblicatione and/or to prG‘v'ide truthful

et o TYAVIL AWaARE UULIAQUIVIID QLI UL

information in connection with ongoing or forthcoming i investigations.
SA 913 (Ex. A to Complaint) (emphasis added). First, only negative statements
actually made by “[t]he University” are within the scope of this provision. The
University’s Trustees are under no contractual duty to refrain from making
negative or other statements; rather, there is only a duty on the part of the
University to use “reasonable efforts” to cause the Trustees not to make certain
negative statements. Second, and more importantly, the SA explicitly authorizes
the making of negative statements if they are “required by law” or “to comply with
legal obligations” and/or “to provide truthful information in connection with
ongoing or forthcoming investigations.”

As noted above, at the time the SA was being negotiated, the Pennsylvania

Attorney General’s investigation into Sandusky’s sexual abuse crimes and the

-7-



response to Sandusky’s conduct by University officials was continuing, leading to
Dr. Spanier’s prosecution the following year. Judge Freeh’s investigation was
her investigations, including those by the NCAA and

the Department of Education, were threatened or had already begun. It was under

these circumstances that the University explicitly preserved its right to make

L

Nemwr n«

Any statement made by Penn State or by its Trustees “in connection with

ongoing or forthcoming investigations” is wholly outside the scope of the SA’s

But the Complaint -- in its repeated but mistaken assertion that the contract
prohibits “any” negative statements -- fails to allege that any statement made by
Penn State itself or by any Trustee was unrelated to “ongoing or forthcoming
investigations” or that it was not “truthful.” Therefore, the Complaint fails to
allege a breach of the SA.

ZA Consulting, L.L..C. v. Wittman, No. 3941, 2001 WL 180740

1)
o~
R~
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@)
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Pl. Aug. 28, 2001), is instructive on the obligation of a plaintiff to plead facts
sufficient to allege a breach. There, the plaintiff filed suit against a former
employee alleging breach of a non-competition agreement. 2001 WL 1807402, at
*2. By its terms, the agreement prohibited the former employee from working for

clients of the plaintiff but only on activities in which plaintiff was also engaged.



Id. While the complaint alleged that the former employee accepted employment
with a client of the plaintiff, the complaint was devoid of any allegation that the
former employee was providing the same services as his former employer. Id. On
the facts as pled, the court concluded that the complaint did not allege a breach of

the non-competition agreement because it left the court “without any grounds to

Id. Accordingly, the defendant’s preliminary objection was sustained. Id. at *3.

The Complaint in this case suffers from the same defect. It, too, fails to

ta Qi it o L anl
L U .
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a truthful, even if “negative,” statement is
allowed by the SA -- while a negative and false statement is prohibited -- then a
Complaint which fails to allege falsity does not sufficiently allege a breach. For

ot ] O e et PRy D |
Ow, &acn uuu-dmpal'agculcut count 18 legally

this and the reasons set

insufficient and should be dismissed.

a. Count I

Count I purports to impose liability on Penn State for negative statements
not even made by Penn State or any of its Trustees, but instead made by Judge
Freeh in the Freeh Report and in a press conference at which he was the only
speaker. Judge Freeh and his law firm had been retained just days after the SA was
executed to conduct an investigation into the University’s awareness and handling

of Sandusky’s conduct and to recommend improvements in policies and



procedures. There is nothing in the SA in which Penn State promised Dr. Spanier
that any independent investigator would, in the course of his investigation, refrain
Dr. Spanier or about anyone eise. Indeed, the
notion that Penn State would somehow promise Dr. Spanier that he would be
immune from “negative” commentary by an independent investigator -- no matter
idence might emerge in the course of the investigation -- is simply

preposterous. See Clairton Slag, Inc. v. Dep’t of Gen. Servs., 2 A.3d 765, 773 (Pa.

Commw. Ct. 2010) (noting well-established principle that a contract not be

cO nstrued in a manner le

LAV"‘- VM wne 113 4 1xACRaEa

conduct by Dr. Spanier relating to Sandusky would somehow be kept secret would

be void as a matter of public policy. See Espenshade v. Espenshade, 729 A.2d

1239, 1246 (Pa. Super. Ct. 1999) (under Pennsylvania law, a contract is
“unenforceable if its formation or performance is criminal, tortious or otherwise
opposed to public policy”). In any event, it is clear that the non-disparagement
language, as written, covers only statements made by the University itself, and not
statements by a third party such as Judge Freeh.

Dr. Spanier apparently recognizes this, so in Count I he attempts to suggest
that Judge Freeh’s words were not really his. According to Dr. Spanier, Ju idge
Freeh was simply a University mouthpiece -- not an independent outside lawyer

and investigator -- writing and saying whatever it was the University told him to

-10 -



say and then lying about his independence. See, e.g., Complaint ¢ 180 (“Penn
State breached the Separation Agreement by ... directing Freeh ... to publicly
accuse Penn State administrators of concealing Sandusky’s criminal activities” and
to make other “negative comments about Dr. Spanier”). The wholly conclusory
allegation that Penn State did not retain Judge Freeh to conduct a legitimate
ead “directed” him to condemn the University itself and its
senior officials, including specifically Dr. Spanier, through a phony investigation,

is illogical on its face and devoid of any particularized facts. It is therefore

insufficient to state a

The Freeh Report, which Dr. Spanier quotes from and references extensively
throughout the Complaint, was publicly presented as the result of an independent
investigation. Dr. Spanier’s conclusory declaration to the contrary is unsupported
by any pled facts. The Complaint cites no facts or particularized allegations that
any negative comment about Dr. Spanier made by Judge Freeh in the Freeh Report
was “directed” by the University. His claim that Judge Freeh and the University

have perpetrated some sort of massive public fraud in characterizing the

investigation and report as the work of Judge Freeh, his law firm, and his team of

more than wild and wholly self-serving speculation untethered to any facts pled in

the Complaint, to any reasonable inferences, or to reality.

11 -



Under Pennsylvania law, the particular facts giving rise to a claim must be
pled. See Lerner, 954 A.2d at 1235 (“Pennsylvania is a fact-pleading state.”);

hebes v. Hazen, 7 Pa. D. & C.5th 376, 383 (Pa. Com. Pl. 2009) (“The Trial Court

has broad discretion in determining amount of detail which must be averred

however, as a minimum, pleader must set forth facts upon which cause of action is

t is not enough to lay out grand conclusions, devoid of

factual support. See Feingold v. Hill, 521 A.2d 33, 38 (Pa. Super. Ct. 1987)

(explaining that “[b]lind suspicions and unsupported accusations” fail to state a

The requirement to plead facts is set forth in Pennsylvania Rule of Civil

Procedure 1019(a). The Rule specifically requires:

the pleader to disclose the material facts sufficient to enable the
adverse party to prepare his case. A complaint therefore must do

more than give the defendant fair notice of what the plaintiff’s claim
is and the grounds upon which it rests. It should formulate the issues

ot URLILS FYARIWIA 2V AWOwW. AU DLIVUIM IVILIIUIALD UIC 1DDUCS

by fully summarizing the material facts. Material facts are ultimate
facts, i.e. those facts essential to support the claim. Evidence from
which such facts may be inferred not only need not but should not be
alleged.... Allegatlons will withstand challenge under [Rule] 1019(a)
if (1) they contain averments of all of the facts the plaintiff will
eventually have to prove in order to recover, and (2) they are
sufficiently specific so as to enable defendant to prepare hlS defense

Lerner, 954 A.2d at 1235 -36 (quoting Baker v. Rangos, 324 A.2d 498. 505-06 (Pa

Super. Ct. 1974)).

12 -



Moreover, claims that amount to “fraud” are subject to heightened scrutiny

and an even higher duty to plead specific facts. See Youndt v. First Nat’l Bank of

A

Port Allegany, 868 A.2d 539, 544-45 (Pa. Super Ct. 2005) (noting that fraud must

be alleged with particularity and that the particularity standard requires that
pleadings must “adequately explain the nature of the claim to the opposing party”
and “be sufficient to convince the court that the averments are not merely
subterfuge”) (quoted case omitted); Pa. R. Civ. P. 1019(b) (fraud “shall be averred
with particularity™).

e Complaint which could be read to

remotely support the conspiracy theory that Penn State hired Judge Freeh, just days

after agreeing not to falsely disparage Dr. Spanier, with secret instructions to

what Judge Freeh’s own opinions might be upon completing his investigation. Nor
are there any facts pled to support Dr. Spanier’s fanciful claim that the University
directed Judge Freeh and his team to make the allegedly negative statements on
which Count I of the Complaint is based. Particularly where, as here, the
conclusory allegations are so far-fetched and inherently implausible, the need to

aver specific facts is paramount. See Feingold, 521 A.2d at 38 (affirming

dismissal on preliminary objections where complaint pleaded only boilerplate

conclusions of law without any material facts to support those claims). In sum,

- 13-



there are no specific facts pled to support the “blind suspicions,” “unsupported
accusations,” and outright “subterfuge” inherent in the assertion that Judge Freeh

TT .

the University and his statements were in reality somehow

wwae atmanl
wdd Sl1pL

the University’s own statements.

For all the above reasons, Count I is legally insufficient and should be

b. Count I1

Count II purports to impose liability on Penn State for facilitating public
disclosure of the Freeh Report, without excising anything “negative” about Dr.
Spanier. Again, Dr. Spanier seems to believe that it was the intent of the SA to
make him -- and him alone -- immune from the investigation into the University’s
handling of Sandusky’s crimes. As with Count I, if Penn State had promised Dr.,
Spanier that anything unfavorable to him that might be discovered in an
independent investigation would be concealed from the public -- which the SA
does not do -- such a promise would have been void as a matter of public policy.
Jerry Sandusky’s crimes, and the University’s or its officials’ involvement, if any,
were matters of enormous and legitimate public interest. In hiring a former FBI
Director and Judge to investigate those matters and then to publicly disclose his

findings -- allowing the chips to fall where they may -- the University acted

- 14 -



honorably and responsibly and in doing so it did not violate any promises to Dr.
Spanier.

In putting the Freeh Report and the Freeh press conference on the Penn State
website, neither Penn State nor its Trustees were making actionable, negative
comments about Dr. Spanier. If Penn State was making any “statement” at all, it
was simply making the undeniably true and not “negative” statement that “this is
what the investigation found.” Because it is not a “negative” statement about Dr.
Spanier and because it is, in any event, squarely within the explicit contract
language allowing the University to provide “truthful information in connection
with ongoing or forthcoming investigations,” it cannot be the basis for an alleged
breach of Penn State’s obligations. Even if, as Dr. Spanier claims, the Freeh
tements or unsupported opinions about him, that
does not make the University’s honest and responsible disclosure of what was
found and reported to be either negative or untruthful.?

For all the above reasons

dismissed.

S arate defamation lawsuit in which, as a public figure, he can
seek relief if he can meet the legal requirements for such a claim. Spanier v, Freeh,
et al., No. 2013-2707 (Centre County Court of Common Pleas).

-15 -



c. Count III

Count III rests entirely on the erroneous assertion that the language of the

SA

jon

arred Penn |
the University an obligation to use “reasonable efforts” to cause Trustees not to
make “any” such statements. See Complaint Y 196-97. As discussed above,
however, the plain language of the contract belies that interpretation and explicitly
permits not only negative statements “required by law or to comply with legal

obligations” but also “truthful information in connection with ongoing or

forthcoming investigations.” See Genaeya Corp. v. Harco Nat’l Ins. Co., 991 A.2d

342, 347 (Pa. Super. Ct. 2010) (noting hornbook principle that “the plain language
of the agreement is the best evidence of the parties’ intent™).

Count III complains of statements made by Karen Peetz as Chair of the
Board of Trustees and by Trustee Kenneth Frazier, as head of the Board’s
investigative task force, on the day of, and the day after, the release of the Freeh
Report. But nothing in Count III alleges that anything said by either of them was
other than a truthful statement made about the findings of the Freeh investigation
and the contents of the Frech Report. Since the statements alleged were made “in
connection with ... investigations,” no breach can be alleged without -- at a

minimum -- an averment that Ms. Peetz and Mr. Frazier were not “truthful,” in

-16 -



what they said, as distinct from what the Freeh Report said. Because no such
allegation is pled, no breach of the SA has been pled.
For ail the above reasons, Count III is legally deficient and should be

dismissed.

d. Count IV

Keith Masser during Sandusky’s criminal trial, in the late stages of the Freeh
investigation, and while the Attorney General’s investigation was continuing. It,
too, rests entirely on the erroneous assertion that the SA covered “any negative
statements, even if truthful and even if made in connection with an ongoing
investigation. As with the statements by Trustees Peetz and Frazier, the Complaint
does not allege that any statement by Mr. Masser was not truthful, and therefore it
does not adequately allege a breach of the contract.

Mr. Masser’s statement is quoted in an article about the Sandusky trial,
published on June 16, 2012 and titled “Testimony at Sandusky Trial Shows Missed
Chances.” Ex. C to the Complaint. Mr. Masser made it clear he was “speaking
for himself,” that he wanted to be careful not to draw “premature conclusions,” and
that at the time Dr. Spanier’s role as President ended there was no belief or

suspicion that he had been “involved in a cover-up.” But, he added, based on the

* A legible copy of this article is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

-17 -



emails that had been discovered by and “in connection with” the Freeh
investigation, and which were the subject of public press reports, it now appeared
to him that “top administration officials ... were involved in making the decision
not to inform the proper authorities.” Not only is there no allegation in the
Complaint that Mr. Masser was not telling the truth as to his personal suspicions
and opinions concerning the meaning and significance of the emails to and from
Dr. Spanier which had by then been publicly reported, but the Complaint explicitly
admits that Dr. Spanier was indeed directly involved in the plan to address
0 government
authorities about whatever he and others knew, or had heard, of Sandusky’s
behavior with a child in the shower of the football building in 2001. See

Complaint 99 114-16.

Nothing said by Trustee Masser could possibly be alleged to be false when
Dr. Spanier admits he was ultimately at the center of the decision and plan that did
not include reporting Sandusky to any government authorities in 2001. Whether or
not Dr. Spanier believes he had good reasons for this decision is irrelevant. Dr.
Spanier was admittedly involved in the decision, and nothing said by Mr. Masser
as to what Mr. Masser personally perceived based on public news accounts of the

emails discovered in the Freeh investigation has been, or could be, alleged to be

false. Even if a personal expression of a suspicion based on publicly reported facts

- 18 -



could be considered “negative” -- and that is doubtful -- the Complaint fails to
allege (nor could it plausibly do so) that any statement by Mr. Masser of his own
For all the above reasons, Count IV is legally deficient and should be
dismissed.
e. Count V
Count V complains of statements made by certain Trustees in being
interviewed for a New York Times article entitled “Penn State’s Trustees Recount
Painful Decision to Fire Paterno.” Ex. D to Complaint. While centering on the
Trustees’ decision to remove Joe Paterno as football coach, the article contains
certain quotes regarding Dr. Spanier, none of which are alleged to be false. Most
of them are simply true and honest statements by the Trustees as to how they felt
about the way they learned of the investigation of Sandusky’s crimes:
“The trustees described how they had felt blindsided by
Spanier’s failure to keep them informed of the nature and scope
of the Pennsylvania attorney general’s investigation of

Sandusky...”

“According to the trustees, Spanier never informed them of
[Sandusky’s 2001 conduct] before Sandusky’s arrest...”

“Many [Trustees] were irked that Spanier had released a

statement in full support of Curley and Schultz, who were
indicted for perjury.”

-19 -



“The trustees ... said that they were disappointed that Spanier
. did not brlet the board on the nature of the questions by the
grand Jury about the [2001] episode.”

“He should have toid us a iot more...”

“Part of bemg a leader at that level i is to be a risk manager and
to think through what might happen..

Ex. D to Complaint.

Even assuming that these statements by various members of Penn State’s
Board of Trustees could be characterized as “negative,” under the meaning of the
SA, there is no evidence — and, more importantly, no allegation in the Complaint --
that the individual Trustees were not complying with their legal obligations in
aining truthfully how they had fulfilled their duties as Trustees in response to,
and in connection with, the Attorney General’s ongoing investigation. Nothing in
the language of the SA could reasonably be interpreted to prevent individual
t and truthful information to the public to “comply with
[their] legal obligations™ as Trustees and to address matters relating to the ongoing
criminal investigation. The notion that the SA gave Dr. Spanier the right to be
perpetually shielded from such truthful information has no support in the language
of the SA or common sense. There is no prohibition or limit of any sort on Penn
State or its Trustees fulfilling their “legal obligations” as Trustees or providing
“truthful information” about the impact of, and their reactions to, the Attorney

General’s then still ongoing investigation. The Complaint fails to allege that any
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of the Trustees’ statements were not made pursuant to their obligations as trustees
or not “in connection with” the ongoing criminal investigation or outside the

ion” provision.
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For all the above reasons, Count IV is legally insufficient and should be
dismissed.

ount VI for “Breach of Contract for Failure to Provide
Administrative Support” Should Be Dismissed.

b
®)

While the Complaint seems to allege at various places that Penn State “has
not provided” Dr. Spanier with specified “administrative support” at any time since
the execution of the SA (See, e.g., Complaint ] 232-34), his claim is more
precisely articulated in paragraphs 168-69, where he specifies that the relevant
“administrative support” was withdrawn in November 2012, a full year after the
SA had been signed. This is significant.

What Dr. Spanier never clearly says in his Complaint -- but which this Court
can consider under Rule 1028(a)(4) -- is that Dr. Spanier was criminally charged
with failure to report child abuse, endangerment of a child, and perjury on
November 1, 2012, almost a year after he was terminated as President.’ The
termination of his administrative support a few days later was a direct and

immediate consequence of those criminal charges.

*The Complaint acknowledges that Dr. Spanier has been criminally charged for his
conduct related to Sandusky. Complaint 9 66, 171; see Exhibit A hereto.
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In demanding that he be provided with “administrative support,” Dr. Spanier
does not -- and cannot -- identify any provision in the SA that would prevent the
University from putting him on a paid leave of absence for circumstances that
arose during his employment and seriously undermined his ability to perform his

job. First, nothing in the SA purports to address what would happen if Dr. Spanier

ta ha
WEere ¢ o

as, with multiple felonies. Such a drastic change in
circumstances entitled the University, while continuing to pay him his promised
compensation of $600,000 per year (which continues to this day), to take

reasonable and modest ste
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duties, making the office and support to which he might have been entitled if not

so suspended, unnecessary. The Complaint does not cite to any provision in the

SA that allegedly prevents the University, in the case of a post-contract indictment,

from taking this action.

Moreover, all the SA does is provide that Dr. Spanier be treated in a manner

\-/

similar to those similarly situated. See SA 9 4(d) (providing for “administrative
support commensurate with that provided ... other tenured faculty members”). But
Dr. Spanier does not allege that his post-indictment treatment was not
“commensurate” with how similarly situated faculty members would be treated,

i.e., those who might be charged with one or more felonies, or that the University
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has singled him out in withdrawing administrative support during the pendency of
a criminal indictment or other comparable change in circumstances.

That Dr. Spanier’s criminal charges permit removal of his administrative
support is evident in the terms of his Employment Agreement which he relies upon
in the Complaint (] 53-57, 61-63) and which, in part, is incorporated into the SA.
SA 993

QAA
A |

» 4, 6. The Employment Agreement contemplated that in the event of
his being “formally indicted in a court of law of any felony” he would “not be
entitled to any further compensation or benefits as President ... nor shall he be

entitled to ¢ nember of the University faculty,

including the Post-Presidency Faculty Position set forth in Section E.6 of this

Agreement.” See Employment Agreement at p. 12 (Exhibit D hereto).

of his Employment Agreement, as incorporated into the SA. See Complaint ] 61-
62. But as noted above, nothing in the SA or the Employment Agreement
prohibits the University from taking steps to deal with an employee who is charged
with multiple serious crimes, including perjury and child endangerment. Indeed,
as shown above, the terms of the Employment Agreement explicitly contemplated
that Dr. Spanier would forfeit all entitlement to administrative support or other

benefits if charged with one or more felonies. Even though the Complaint gives
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short shrift to Dr. Spanier’s criminal prosecution, the fact that administrative
support was not withdrawn until affer he was charged negates his claim.

For all the above reasons, Count VI is legally insufficient and should be
dismissed.

3. Count VII for “Breach of Contract for Failure to Pay Legal
Expenses” Should Be Dismissed.

Count VII claims Penn State has breached paragraphs 4(f) and 6 of the SA.
Paragraph 4(f) provides that Dr. Spanier would be reimbursed for “attornecys’ fees
and expenses” which “he has incurred” with respect to “the grand jury presentment
and his termination from the position of President of the University.” SA 4(f)
(emphasis added). This provision says nothing about fees and expenses he might
incur going forward, and there is no allegation in the Complaint that Penn State
failed to reimburse him for any fees and expenses which he had incurred with
respect to either the then existing grand jury presentment or his termination as
President.

Paragraph 6 of the SA more broadly provides that Penn State would
“indemnify” Dr. Spanier “in accordance with the terms of Section J of the
Employment Agreement and with the by-laws of the University.” SA 9 6. Section
J, and the related by-laws, provide for the University to indemnify and hold him
harmless, even “subsequent to termination . . . as President,” with respect to “acts

or omissions occurring while he was serving as President.” Ex. D hereto.

-24 -



The Complaint identifies only two expenses allegedly incurred by Dr.
Spanier as the basis for his claim of breach. First, he claims that Penn State has
failed to reimburse him for some sort of undisciosed consuitant he apparently hired
to defend his “reputation.” Complaint § 242. Second, he claims that Penn State

has failed to reimburse him for the costs of a “federal lawsuit” which he allegedly

Neither of these expenses gives rise to any viable claim of breach. Nothing
in the SA or the Employment Agreement or the University’s by-laws provides for
pparently public relations expenses. Nor is there any
basis for him to claim reimbursement for fees he unilaterally chose to incur in

suing the University.

In

i3 &

addition, Dr. S

University or made any demand on the University for reimbursement of these bills

or what amounts are allegedly owed. Where a plaintiff fails to allege a prior

or monies allegedlv due. the com

SO RRAARIS QLIVEVSL) Rkl )

contract. See, e.g., St. Hill. & Assocs., P.C. v. Capital Asset Research Corp., No.

5035, 2000 WL 33711023, at *2 (Pa. Com. PL. Sept. 7, 2000) (even where plaintiff

*Penn State believes the reference to a “federal lawsuit” may be in error. The only
similar suit filed by Dr. Spamer was a state court lawsuit. That action was
voluntarily dismissed by him shortly after it was filed. See Docket in Spanier v.
Pennsylvania State Univ., No. 2012-2065 (Centre County Court of Common Pleas)
(Exhibit E hereto).
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alleged he submitted invoices to the defendant for payment, the failure to allege
when the invoices were sent or when payment was due was insufficient to support
a breach of contract claim).

For all the above reasons, Count VII is legally insufficient and should be
dismissed.

IV. CONCLUSION

For all the reasons set forth above, Penn State respectfully requests that the
Court sustain its preliminary objections to all Counts of the Complaint and dismiss
the Complaint with prejudice.

Respectfully sub/’}ted

oo A

Daniel I. Booker (PA 10319)
Donna M. Doblick (PA 75394)

REED SMITH LLP
225 Fifth Avenue

Suite 1200

Pittsburgh, PA 15222
(412) 288-3131

(412) 288-3063 (fax)
dbooker@reedsmith.com
ddoblick@reedsmith.com

Michael T. Scott (PA 23882)
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Pennsylvania State University
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FINDINGS OF FACT

Tﬁis investigation commehced as a result of allegations of sexual assaults of
minor male childrgn by Gerald R. Sandusky (“Sandusky”) over a period of years while
Sandusky was a football coach with the Pennsylvania State University (‘Penn Staté”j
footbali team and after he retired from coaching. The Thirty-Third Statewide
lnvestigating‘ Grand Jury. issues this Presentment in furtherance of its ongoing

investigatién of this matter and hereby incorporates all’ of its previous findings from

| 1998 Incident Involving Victim 6

In the spring of 1998, -Sandusky was a very pfomineht ‘defenéive
coordinator/assistant football coach at Penn State, Sandusky had garnered national
acclaim for the quality of his coaching and was widely looked upon as the mastermind
of defenses tﬁat led to twb national cha.mpionships in the 1980’s. He was revered in
mut;h of the State Coliege area not only for his coaching success, but also his work with
youth through a non-profit organization he founded known as the Second Mile. |

Sandusky started the Second Mile in the 1970's, principally'}avs a fostér home that
would fdcus on assisting troubled boyls. Over time, the Second Mile developed into a |

much broader-based regional charity that focused its efforts primarily on young boys

‘name” behind the chafity, utilizing his broad array of contacts both at Penn State and

around the region to raise money and create highly recognized events for the charity.
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On May 3, 1998, Sandusky contacted Victim 6, then eleven years o!d about
going to work out with him at Penn State facilities. Victim 6 met Sandusky about four
weeks prior at a Second Mile youth activity. Sandusky picked the boy up around
7:00 p.m., and they went to fhe Easf Area Locker Room on campus. At the time, it

contained workout facilities, showers, and football team Idclker room.

| The “workout” session consisted of a brief wrestling episode in Which Sandusky
tried to pin Victim 6, followed by a short period of using exercise machines. AfferWa‘rds,
. Sandusky kissed Victim 6 on the head and told him he loved him.v Sandusky then took
the boyAto a coach'’s locker room and suggestéd they showef together. Victim 6 testified
that he
swe.ating; and therefore he felt he did not need - a shower. Despite feelings of
em‘bafrassment and discomfort, Victim 6 did enter the shower room with Sandusky.

| Upon entering the showers, Victim 6 immediately went 'to the side of the room
opposite where Saﬁdusky was showering. Sandusky coaxed Victim 6 over to the
shower next to him. Sandusky placed his hands around the boy and told himv he was
going to “squeeze his guts out” Victim 6 téstifigd that this- made “him  very
unéomfortable. He then lifted Victim 8 up to “get soap out of his hair" and at that point
the boy’'s face was right in Sandusky's chest. |

Sandusky took the boy homé at around 9:00 p.m. and left thek area. Victim 6’s
motherv noticed that his hair Was' wet and she inquired why. He inférmed her of the

shower activity and she became quite concerned and

1
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pset. The next morning, she

made a report to the University Park Police. Detective Ronald Schreffler was assigned
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to the case and aimost immediately began an investigation into Sandi usky's contact with
the boy.

Ihitielly,» Centre County Children and Youth Services (CYS) were also notified of .
" the complaint made by Vjctim_ 6's mother. Centre County CYS referred the case,
“however, to tﬁe Pehns’ylvanié Department of Public Welfare (DPW), citing a conflict of
interest due to.their heavy involvement in placement and foster care ectivities .with
Sanduskyv's Seeond Mile charity. Normally, the case would have been referred to a
neighboring county child welfare agency but, due to Sandusky's high-profile. status in

the community, the case was sent directly to the state DPW in Harrisburg.

and early June 1998. It included not only interviews of Victim 6 and his mofher, but also
of'a second child, B.K., aiso 11, who described very simiiaf contact with Sandusky in a
shower on a different occasion. Schreffler testified.that, twice in mid-May, he and
University Police Detective Ralsfon_ listened in on two conversations Victim 6's mothef
had with Sandusky at her home. She confybnted Sandusky about his conduct with her
son in the shower and he admitted his private parts may have touched her son when he
bear-hugged the boy. When informed that he was not to contect Victim 6 anymore,
Sandusky res’p}onded, “| understand. | was wrong.‘ | wish | could get forgiveness. | know
i won't get it from you: [ wish | were dead.” Schreffler, Ralston, and Vietim 6’s mother all
confirrﬁed these conversatiohs before the Grand Jury.

Sandusk_v was never interrogated about the incident or the statements made fo
Victim 6's mother. Then Centre County District Attorney Ray Gricar decided there

£ tk: Aaniaimm vacmn mansla

would be no criminal charges. It was only a nis aecision was maae et
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and Jerry Lauro, an investigator with DPW, interviewed Sandusky on June 1, 1998
. Lauro testified. that Sandusky admitted to showering with and hugging Victim '6. He
acknowledéed that it was wrong. Schreffler told him not to shower with children
anymore and Sandusky assured Schreffler that he would not.

| Tom Harmon was the Chief of Police of the University Police Department in 1998
and a thirty-year veteran of the University Ptolice Depariment. Chief Harmon testified
that he was concerned when the initial report regarding Sandusky came to his -

Department on May 4, 1998.“ Chief Harmon received a rather extensive briefing from

Detective Schreffler regarding his interview with Victim 6. Chief Harmon then called A

Sdhultz oversaw the University Police Department as a part of his position. Chief
Harmon testified that it was not unusuai for him to keep Schuitz informed of the Astatu‘s of
investigations that could' prove embarrassing to, or generate public scrutiny of, Penn .
State. Chief Harmon spoke in detail with Schultz on the evenings of May 4 and.May &
about spedifics of the investigation, |
Schultz took nt>tes during his conversations with Harmon.! Schultz not only
wrote down veryvdetailed information about Sandusky’'s contact with Victim 6, but‘he
also made several observations about the import of Sandusky's conduct. At one point
Schultz noted that Sandusky’s béhavior toward Victim 6 was “at best inappropriate @
worst »sexual' improprieties.” He further notted that during the bear hug between
- Sandusky and Victim 6 there “had to be genital contact because of size difference.” He

also clearly understood that Victim 6 had a friend (B.K.) and “claim[ed] same thing went

' 4 pages of notes kept by Schultz on 5/4 and 5/5/98 are Attached as Exhibit 1. it will be discussed later in
this Presentment why these notes were not discovered by authontues untif April of 2012.
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on with him.” Schultz éppeared to énaiyze what couid uitimateiy be important areas for
police and prosecutors when he observéd “critical issue — contact w ggnitals?” Finally,
at the conclusion of his notés, he pondered two chilling questions when he wrote, “is
tﬁis opening of ‘pando»ras box? ther c':hildren?"

- The investigation by police and child welfare a'uthoriti.es into this incident was
clearly a mattet of considerable intereét among high-ranking Penn State administrators.
Sandusky was in many.ways at the pin‘nac!e of his career, enjoying tremendous statu_re
both 'for‘his coaching ability and his work withih the Second Mile. The filing of criminal

charges or other legal action against Sandusky for having sexual contact with a young

light of the fact that the iﬁcident' occurred on campus. The Grand Jury reviewed a
>nL‘1mber of‘eiect‘ronic communications from May and June of .1998 tﬁat r_eﬁect the
- concern that several University officials shared over the course and dfrection of the
investigation.? Schultz very quickly updated Athletic Director Tim Curley and Univérsity
President Graham Spanier. followiﬁg his éonversatidns’ with Chief Harmon. Curley in
- fact sent.an e-mail on May 5, 1998 and alerte‘d.Schu.Itz, “| have touched base with the
coach. Keep us posted. Thanks.” SChu_!tz responded to Curley on May 6 and copied the
e-mail to Spanier, indicating the following: “Will do. Since we talked tonight I've learned
that the Public Wélfare people will interview the individﬁai Thursvday.”3 In fhe first thir‘t'y-
six. ho.urs after Victirﬁ 6's mother alerted the' police, Schultz obtained detailed

information from the Chief of Police about virtually every aspect of police contact with °

% These electronic communications (e-mails) were not obtained by this Grand Jury until many months

_ after the original Presentment on this matter in November of 2011, and therefore could not be considered
or utilized in our evaluation at that time.

¥ E-mail attached as Exhibit 2
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alerting the school President by, at a minimum, oopying him on communications).

As the police and child welfare investigation progressed through the month of
May, theré were a number of doéumented communit;ations by Penn State offibials
regarding this matter. Curley anxiously asked Schultz for status ubdates on at}least.
three occasions with phrases like “anything new iﬁ thié department?” and “any further
update?”® The Grand Jury notes that these e[e_ctronic’ communications clearly estab!isﬁ |
that Curley made a matérially false statement under oath before the 30" Statéwide
investigating Grand Jury when he testified he had no.kno,wledge of this investigation.br
| hultz responded several times to Curley,
and that police and DPW caseworkers plannéd to meet with Sandusky to discuss his
behaviovr. Finally, on June 9, 1998, Schultz sent Curiey an e-mail on which he copied
Spanier and Chief Harmon. Schultz informed Curley and Spanier of the decisioﬁ not to
pursue chérges and to close fhe{inves.tigation and, at the conclusion, he noted, "I think
the matter has been appropriately investigated and I hope it is now behind us.”®
Chief Harmon testified he was personally relieved by the decision of the Centre
- County ﬁistrict Attorney not to pursué criminal charges ‘against Sandusky. He also
. understood Gary Schultz to be relieved by this decision. Chief Harmon also indicated

| he kept Schultz very informed of the investigation throughout May and spoke with him

by telephone on about five occasions. Chief Harmon expected, as would be consistent

4 E-mail attached as Exhibit 3 and includes communication from Curley on 5/13, 5/18 and 5/30/98.

S The Grand Jury notes these false statements are the subject of a criminal trial in the Dauphin County
Court of Common Pleas In Commonweaith v. Timothy Curley, docketed at No. CP-22-CR-5165-2011.
® See attached Exhibit 3 ‘
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with his experience when there was an investigation of signiﬁcen't importance io both
the. Athletic Department and the-University as av whole, that Schultz would inform both
Spanler and Curley of what was happening. Numerous wutnesses who were employed
at Penn State testified that Schultz was a detailed, orgamzed tndwldual who adhered
faithfully to the chain of command and the “no surprises” rule for his immediate boss, -
_ Greham Spanier. |

Detective Schreffler testified that the ninety-eight page police report was not filed
under a typical cfiminel investigation, but wae instead assighed -an Administrative

number. This would make the report very difficult to locate unless someone specifically

‘was very unusual for e criminal investigation to be Iabeled in this manner within the
Un!versny Police department. Chief Harmon agreed this was an unusuai thiﬁg to do,
. and testified that it was done at his direction because there was a concern.the media
might make inquiries if the incident were placed on their regul.ar police log.

. Victim 6 testified along with Detective Schreffler at the criminal trial of Sandusky
in Gentre County. Victim 6 and Sehrefﬂer testified consistently with their appearance
before this Graed Jury. As a result, Sandusky was convicted of Unlawful Contact with a

Miner. Corrupting the Morals of a Mihor, and Endangering the Welfare of e Child.”

" The verdict was returned on June 22, 2012, and included forty-five total convictions spanning ten -
separate victims. Sandusky was sentenced on October 9, 2012 and received an aggregate sentence of
thirty to sixty years in prison.
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February 9, 2001 Incident
In December of 2010, Michael McQueary testified before thé Grand jury ébout' :
events he observed in the Lasch Building, on a Friday evening, on the Penn State
campus. McQueary detailed how he observed Sandusky sexually assault a young boy
in the shower at that facmty
' In February of 2001, McQueary wés a graduéte assistant footbail coach. He was
working for hgéd footballvcoach Joseph V. Paterno, for whom McQueary had played the
poéition of quarterback from 1993 to 1997. McQueary testified that he was sitﬁ.ng at

home on a Friday night watching a football movie, “Rudy.”® He decided to go to the

he had purchased a pair of éneakers and decided to bring them to place in his locker.
Upon enterfng the locker room, McQueary heard showers ‘running an‘d
skin-on-skin smacking sounds. He became Concérned ab;)ut what he might be walking
-in on, and he proceeded quickly over to his locker. His initial view was through a mirror
into the shower. He observed Jerry Sandusky, who had been an aséfstant football
coach when McQueary played at Penn State, standing behind a pre-pubescent boy who
was propped up against the shower. The boy’'s hands were up against the wall and he
was naked, as was S‘andusky.' McQueary then stepped to the right and looked directly

into the showers. Sandusky hadi his arms wrapped around the boy's midsection and

8 Sandusky was tried and convicted for this incident of four (4) cnmlnal counts of indecent Assau[t
Unlawful Contact with a Minor, Endangering the Welfare of Children, and Corruption of Minors as a result
of a jury trial and verdict on June 22,2012, McQueary was the sole witriess utilized to establish these
cnmes beyond a reasonable doubt.

® The original date of this incident was believed to have been in early March 2002. McQueary testified the
incident happened in either 2001 or 2002. Subsequent evidence has confirmed the actual date of the
incident as February 9, 2001. : '
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was right up against the boy. There was no doubt in McQueary’s mind that a séxual
4 aésault Was taking place.

McQueary slammed his locker door shut and observed Sandusky and the boy
separate from their original position. He was 'extr.emely shocked and alarmed.
McQueary left the locker room area and went up to his office. He called his father, John
McQueary, and provided him a br:ief description of what he had seen. His father asked
him to drive over to his house, which McQueary did. |

John McQueary testified thét he had never seen his 36n és s;laken and upset as -

" he was that night.  John McQueary also called a family friend, Dr. Johathan Dranav, to

his father and Dr. Dranov. They advised him to contact Coach ’Paterno early the next
morning and report what he had seen.

Early on Saturday mormning, ngruary 10, 2001, Mike McQueary called his boss,
Cbach Paternd. McQueary made the phone call at gpprdximately 7:00 a.m., and asked
if he could come to meet with the coach. McQueary immediately went to F’aterno’s
house, where he reported to Paterno what he witnessed between Sandusky and the
~ boy tr;e night before. |

Jose‘ph Paterno testified before a prior Grand Jury that he did in fact receive
McQﬁeary’s information at his home on a Saturday morning.'® Paterno recognized that
McQueary wa's vefy upset and assured him he did the right thing by coming to Paterno.

Paterno informed the Grand _|_!_ that McQueary described Sandusky fondling or doin g
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something of a sexual nature to a young boy in the Lasch Building showers. He told

1% Joe Paterno unfortunately passed away on January 22, 2012,
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MbQu’eary he would pass the information along to his superiors'{. Paterno decided to
prdvide the information to Tim Curley the‘very" next day, Sunday, February 11, 2001. |

February 11, 2001, was less than three years after the 1 998 police investigation.
Curley and Schultz both testified before the Thirtieth Statewide Investigating Grand Jﬁry
théy met with Paterno on a Sunday. It would be at least another week before they
decide to speak with McQueary about what he actually witnessed in the Lasch Building
showeré.11 it is clear that the meeting with Paterno gen~erated a fluny of activity.

Pé’rernn testified. he relayed substantially the same information McQueary told to him to

LRI T IV s diisim e 7o 3w - =S54 & B

McQuaide Blasko provided most of thevoutside counsel work to Penn State in 2001,
with Courtney acting és one of the primary attorneys for the firm in their relationship. with
the University. Téstimony from a number of sources hefore the Grand Ju& suggested
Schultz énd Courtney had, and to this day have, a close personal friendship.

Schultz contacted Courtney that very Sunday regarding the information that
Paterno providéd. There was no delay or hesitation in seeking out Courtney. In fact,
billing records from McQuaide Blasko sﬁow that Schultz and C'ourtney discussed the
'issue that Sunday, February 11. Courtney billed out 2.9 hours of time for'what he
described at the tlme as “Conferénce with G Schultz re reporting of suspected child

abuse; Legal research re same; Conference with G Schuitz."'? Despite ef'forts by this

obtained from McQuaide Blasko.

" The exact date of the meeting between McQueary, Schultz and Curley Is unknown. Based on known
electronic communications, it was not any later than February 25, 2001.
'2 Billing record is attached as Exhibit 4.
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The similarities between the 1998 and 2001 incidents are rather striking. Bothv
involve Sandusky showering naked alone with pre—pubescerit\ boys and having close
physical contad with the children (although the nature of the 2001 contact is more
~ severe and extreme with regard to the sexual contact).. Both incidents occurred in the

showers at Penn State. Chief'Harmon téstified that he recéived a cali from Gary
Sphultz on February 12 2001, inquiring into the status of the paperwork from the 1998
investigation and whether it was available as a record. Chief Harmon fespbnded by e-
mail during the late _ft_moorj. of Monday, February 12, and stated, “Regarding the
“incident in 1998 involving the former coach, | ohééked and the incident is documented in
our imaged archives.”'® At no point did Sc 4
the Univers.ity and é subérdinate Qf‘Schultz,'that there had been another report of
shockingly similar behavior by Sandusky on campus. Schu1tz merely ‘a’ppeared‘ to be
cpncerned ébout the current existence of the 1998 investigatory files.

By the afternoon of Monday, February 12, 2001, Schultz and Curley formulate a
plan (that was also communicated that afternoon to. Graham Spanier) reflected in the
handwritten notes of Gary Schultz." Schultz dated the note 2/12/01 with the header
“Cpnfidential." He indicatedvthat he had “talked with TMC [Curley]” and that thé.
following steps were to take.place or have taken place, “reviewed 1998 history—agreed
TMC will discuss with JVP _[Paterno] and advise we think TMC should meet w JS

[Sandusky] on Friday—unless he “confesses” to having a problem, TMC will indicate we.

Al wavsiswag {'I-\ m ot r
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Welfare — TMC will keep me posted.” The plan, formulated many days before Curley

13 E_mall attached as Exhiblt 5.
4The handwritten note is attached as Exhibit 6.
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and Schultz would even speak to the actual eyeW|tness mvowea usmg‘ heir legal
requirement to report this ;nformatlon as a bargaining chip wnth Sandusky to get him to
“confess” his problem. Thus, if Sandusky agreed to a particular course of actlon they
would not notify the proper authorities, including apparently the police department
Schultz himself supervised. | |

Schultz and Curley sc,héduied a meeting with McQueary at the Bryce Jordan
Center, approximately seven to ten days after receiving the report from Paterno.
McQueary indicated ha’f the meeting lasted approxirﬁately fifteen minutes. Schultz and
Curley asked no questions. McQueary described the extremely sexual nature of the
incident and they toid him they would get back to him. |

After speakiﬁg to McQueary directly about the incident, Schultz sent an email to .
Curley on Mond‘ay, February 26, 2001. There appears to have been a change from the
February 12™ plan regarding contacting an outside child welfare agency. The email
reads as follows: “Tim, I'm assuming that you've got the ball to 1) talk with the subject
ASAP regarding the future appropriate use of the University facility; 2) contacting the
chair of the Charitable Organization; and 3) contacting the Dept of Welfare. As you
know I'm out of theﬁ effice for the next two weeks, but if you need anything from me, .
please let me know."!® Schultz asked for confirmation from Curley about contacting

DPW

¥ e

. Curley responded_on' February 27, 2001, just after 8:00 p.m. Curley included

Lt mmarmt imiAS 4 n16!

Spanier on this communication. reads as follows:

I CAA o €A Trdimw v s

| had scheduled a meeting with you this afternoon about the
subject we discussed on Sunday. After giving it more

15 Email attached as Exhibit 7.
6 Email attached as Exhibit 8.
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thought and talking it over with Joe yesterday—i am
uncomfortable with what we agreed were the next steps. |

~ am having trouble with going to everyone, but the person
involved. | think 1 would be more comfortable meeting with
the person and tell him about the information we received. |
would plan to tell him we are aware of the first situation. |
would indicate we feel there is a problem and we want to
assist the individua! to get professional help. Also, we feel a
responsibility at some point soon to inform his organization
and and maybe the other one about the situation. . If he is
cooperative we would work with him to handle informing the
organization. If not, we do not have a choice and will inform
the two groups. Additionally, | will iet him know that his
guests are not permitted to use our facilities.

| need some help on this one. ‘' What do you think about this
approach? . ' o .

Curiey used coded words to try tc mask the true nature of this topic. He referred to

Sandusky as the “individual’ or “person”. He referred to the Second Mile as the

w

“organization”. I addition, he referred to the 1998 investigation as the “first situation”.
HQ then discusséd a similar type of deal that had been discussed on February 12. This,
‘deal would keep Sandusky -from being reported to outside authorities if he was
- “cooperative” and followed the suggestions Curley put forth. Curley also indicated that
he would inform Sandusky that his “‘guests" are not permitted to use Penn State
facilities.  These “guests” were actuéll_y the young boyé that Sandesky would routinely
bring onto the Penn State ca.'mpUS, often at odd hours when vefy few people were
around to witness his actions with the children; Curley was u'ndou:btedly seeking the
blessing of his boss, Spanier, when he indicated, “| need some help on this one.”

- responded a couple of hours later as follows:.

Tim: This approach is abceptable to me. It requires you fo

go a step further and means that your conversation will be all .

the more difficult, but | admire your willingness to do that and
| am supportive. The only downside for us is if the message
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isn’t ‘heard’ and acted upon, and we then become vuinerabie

for not having reported it. But that can be assessed down

the road. The approach you outline is humane and a

reascnable way to proceed.
Spanier did not question the existence of the “first situation” or inquire as to what Curley
was referring to. He instead endorsed the plan of action that involved circumventing
any outside agency. He did recognize the potential consequences for their failure to
report by suggesting they will be “vulnerable” if “the message isn't ‘heard’ and acted
upon.” ‘

Schultz alse endorsed this plan by responding the following day:

Tim and Graham, this is a more humane and upfront way to

handle this. | can support this approach, with the

understanding that we will inform his organization, with or

without his cooperation (I think that's what Tim proposed).

We can play it by ear to decide about the other organization.
The Grand Jury would note that'evidencé was presented showing that no report of what
Viichael McQueary witnessed was ever made to a children and youth agency, DPW, or
. any police agency. The Grand Jury notes that the above electronic communications
and other evidence clearly establish that Schultz made a materially. false statement
under oath before the Thirtieth Statewide Investigating Grand Jury when he testified
numerous times that the McQueary incident had been turned over to DPW or other child
" welfare entities."” |
Curley did in fact implement part of the plan that he, Spanier, and Schuitz agreed
" to follow. Curley met with Sandusky in early March and instructed him not to bring

~ children on campus. This ban was completely unenforceable. In fact, since only . -

Schuitz and Spanier also knew of this plan, no other individuals at Penn State or entities

7 The Grand Jury notes these false statements are the subject of a criminai trial in the Dauphin County
Court of Common Pleas in'Commonwealth v. Gary Schultz, docketed at CP-22-CR-5164-2011.

10
13

EXHIBIT A



~ such as the police department would even be aware of the ban to try and enforce it. He
also met wuth Dr. Jack Raykovutz the Executive Director of the Second Mile, to advise

him that Sandusky was prohlblted from bringing youth onto the Penn State campus.
Raykowtz testified before the Grand Jury he did not ask who the boy was in the shower
or whether he was a Second Mile kid. He said Curley described the mcudent as mere
-horseplay that made somecne '_urtcomfortable. _

There is ho evidence | that Curley, Spanier, or Schuitz ever sought to get
fessional help” to which Curleyv referred in the email. The only thing |
asked of Sandusky was that he not bring children ort the campus anymore. T.his, of.
course, not only did not happen but evidence presented before this grand jury indicates -
Sandusky continued to have kids on Acampus}with him with some regularity.

Curley did talk with McQueary several weeks after their initial meeting.
McQueary was told that Sandusky'’s keye to the locker room had been taken away and
the incident was reported to the Second Mile. No law enforcement investigators were
notified to speak with McQueary about his observations until November of 2010.

John McQueary confrohted Gary Schultz about what was being done regardihg
his son Mike's report. This took place several weeks later at the office bUiIdihg where
McQueary worked. D‘r. Dranov was also present during thts. meeting. Schultz assured
McQueary he would !eok into' the matter and that it was being investigated. McQueary,
like his son Mike, was welll aware of the fact that Schultz oversaw the police -

department. John McQueary never heard anything further from Gary Schultz about the
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. Grand Jury Investigation and Attempts to Gather Evidence 2010-2012

4 After the diéclosures t;y Michael McQueary to the Grand Jury, the investigation
sought to: identify and encourage .v'Ictims of abUse at the handé'of,San'dusky to reveal
‘their ordeal to the Grand Jury; -find events that supported and ‘corroborated the
testimoriy of Michael McQueary; reexamine the actions of Sandusky in" May of 1998,
and the. investigation hé_reof, in fight of the new evidence of Sandﬁsky’s criminal

activities: search for evidence of Sandusky's known activities, and those potentially yet

job]

unknown, that may be in the possession © nd, determine whether or not
any employees or officials at Penn State assisted Sandusky in his activities or soughf to
conceal or obscure these activities from the authorities and the public. Unfortunatety,
the lnvestigative Grand Jury's efforts to acquire pertinent and valuable evidende from
Penn State were significantly thwarted and frustrated from 2010 to 2012.

Typical of this experience was Grand Jury Subpoena 1179. Subpoena 1179 was
issued in December ‘of 2010 yet would remain unfulfilled untit April of 2012. This
subpdena, authorized and signed by the Supervising Judge of the lnvéstigating Grand
Jury, required .Penn State University to acquire and disclose to the Grand Jury: “Any
- and all records pertaining to Jerry Sanduéky and incidents reported to have occurred on

or about March 2002 and any other information concerning Jerry Sandusky in

inappropriate contact with underage males on and off University property. . Response

; .
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Upon service of this subpoena in December of 2010, Penn State’s ' Legai
Counsel, Cynthia Baldwin, immediately informed Spanier of the subpoena and the
. University's obligation to respend. At the same time, Curley, Schultz and Paterno had
also been s_ubpoenéed to appear before the Grand Jury scheduled in Janﬁary of 2011.
She informed' Spanier about those subpoenas as well. Spanier told her that he would
* notify Curley and Schuitz and that she was to contact Patemo. Soon thereafter, Legal
Counsel Baldwin met with Spamer and with Athletic Director T|m Curley. At this

‘without t discussion, that Baldwin would go with Curley and

Spanier. Each pe'rsonally and directly assured her that they knew of no informétio‘n or
documents involving alleged misconduct or inappropriate contact by Jerry Sandusky.
-They also assured her that they would look and see if they could find any such
lnformatlon or documentation. In the several weeks after the receipt of Subpoena 1179,
ail three individuals—Spanier, Shultz and Curley—assured Baldwin that they had '
unvesthated and determmed that they possessed no information or documents that
would be responsive to Subpoena 1179. She was specifically assured that they had
searched through their emails and thSIcal documents for any Sandusky-related
materials. In addition, Athletic Director Curley informed Baldwin that the Athletic
Departiment did not possess any applicable responsive materials. |

The ’irjvestigation also found that, contrary to what Schultz had told legal counsel

Baldwin, Schultz had a file kept in his Penn State office containing notes and
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- documents directly related to the 1998 and 2001 .sexual assault by Sandusky.. ‘These
documents included hand-Written notes prepared by Schultz from conversations he had
v_vith Penn State 'Univ.ersity Police Chief Thomas Harmon .in 1998. Chief Harmon

.testified thaf, during the investigation of Sandusky from May and through part of June
1998, he provided frequent and detailed updates to Schultz. ~ As part of this
investigation, Chief Harmon reviewed the notes prepared by Schultz and identified them
as reflective of their conversations at the time. Chief Harmon a!sé detailed that the
1998 investigation of Sandusky was a "big deal” and clearly recognized as such. It was
clear to Chief Harmon, from his extensive conversations With Schulté, that the
University's ‘Hierarchy was exifemeiy‘ interested_and concerned about this investigation.
.There was no question that it was recoghized that this investigation had the potential to
significantly damage and embarrass Penn State.

" Also included in the notes kept in Schultz's officé were notes that Schultz wrote
regarding_at least one conversation he had with Athletic Direétor Tim Curley aboﬁt the
McQueary observations in February of 2}001. One noté, _recited ahove, written by
Schultz and dated February 12, 2001,.clearly stated thét Schultz and Curley had
“reviewed 1998 history” Before digcussing how to handle tﬁe latest allegations about
Sandusky. In an email on that same date, February 12, 2.001, Schultz was told by Chief
Harmon that the 1998 investigative file still exists and “is documented in our imaged
archives.” Chief Harmon testified before the Grand Jury that he provided this response

e 1098 investigative file still

as a result of Schul he 1998 investigat
existed. Chief Harmon stated that at no time during his contact with Schultz on this

matter did Schultz reveal anything about a new aliegation against Sandusky. Schuiiz,
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despite being informed of McQueary's allegations within 48 hours of their occurrence on

the night of February 9}, 2001, and deépite his having contact with the University Chief of

Police about the 1998 investigation, never repoﬂed then, or at any other timé, the new
‘ allegations of Sandusky assaults on a minor boy in a.Penn State. shower.

In January of _2011, only a handful Qf dvocuments were provided in response to
the subpoena. None of the ‘documents provided were material or pertinent to the
misconduct and crimes of Sandusky. Subseq'uent ihvestfgation into whether the
University fully complied with the subpoena determined that no effort was made to
search the Athletic Department, where Sandusky had been employed for over 30 years,
or to search 'any of the eiectrénicaiiy stored data at t . .
docﬁments pertinent to their responses to this subpoena.

It is also noteWorthy that Pgnn State had in place a well-defined historical
practice and procedure for responding to subpoenas.  Subpoenas that might
encompass electronically stored data (such as emails and documents stored on a
computer or network drive) would routinely be sent to the spe.cialized"unit éalled the,
“SOS.” These information technolbgy professionals were trained and dedicated to

_assembling responsive electronically stored data in response to Iitigatioﬁ needs 6r other
legal process. None of the SOS professionals were ever shown 'subpoena 1179, nor

were they directed to seek any of the information requested by subpoena 1179 before

information technoiogy empioyees of Penn State, who were not members of the SOS
unit but had access to the electronically stored data likely to be searched to fulfill the

'.requirements of subpoena 1179. These information technology employees likewise
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stated that theyllwere never requested to fulfill any requests for Sandusky reiated
information. In addition, no independent efforts were made to search the paper files of
the Athletic Director, Tim Curley, the Vice President of Finance and Business, Gary
Schulfz, or the President of the Unlversny, Graham Spanier.

The notes and documents concerning Sandusky's 1998 and 2001 crimes were in
Schultz's Penn State office on- November 5, 2011, The administrative assistant at the
time, Ki mberty Belcher upon learning that Schultz was to be arrested and would not be
returning to the office, removed these documents from a file drawer in Schultz s off ice
and delivered them to his .home.18 Joan Coble, who served as Schultz's administrative
assistant until her retirement in 2005, testm
never “look in” the “Sandusky” file he kept in his boekcase file ‘drawer. She said it was a
very unusual request and was made in a “tone of voice” she had never heard him use
before. |

It should be ’noted that, throughout the Grand Jury’s investigation, S'panier
contlnuously wanted to know about the actlons of the Grand Jury and |aw enforcement
znvestlgators He required specific updates and regularly checked with. Baldwm for any

‘new information about the investigation. Legal Counsel Baldwin relayed ail known
information directly to Spanler She fully informed him of alt Grand Jury subpoenas and

igative renuests.’g Spanier also pressed Baldwin for information about Paterno’s

£

contacts with investigators and the Grand Jury: When she informed Spanier that

8 Before giving the original documents to Schultz, Beicher made a copy for herself. Belcher then lied
about the existence and whereabouts of these documents whenever she w subsequently questzoned
9y Unlversity representatives,

Legal Cousel Baldwin testlﬁed that 1t was not only her duty to inform the University President of such things, but
that Spanier aiso specifically requested that she keep h him informed of everything regarding this investigation.
Spanier has repeatedly misrepresented the level of his knowledge about the mvestlgauon He told Board members
and others that he was ignorant of the investigation into the 1998 and 2001 crimes. Even after his termination as
President, he sent a letter to the Board on July 23, 2012, reiterating these false claims.
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Paterno had acquired his own lawyer, who was not affiliated with the University, Spé}nier
seemed disturbed and questioned aloud why Paterno would not use the University's
legal counsel: He also questionea Baldwin, on a number of occasions, about what she
knew or could discover regarding tﬁe information Paterno was providing to authorities.
Legal counsel Baldwin testiﬁéd before the Gré;nd Jury that, by January of 2011,
Spanier was well aware that the Grand Jury was investigatihg the May 1998 ailegations
. against Sandusky and the McQueary allegations against Sandusky. In March of 2011,

aw enforcement investigators requested an interview with Spanier. Spanier agreed and

the allegations of a high school student in

(o8

allegations, the McQueary allegations, an
Clinton County. Baldwin specifically discussed all of these matters with Spanier before
that interview. Baid\‘/s./in als’oitestiﬁed that it was absolutely clear from her discussion-with
Spanier that he had extensively discussed the substance of Curley and Schultz's grand
jury testimonies from January 2011 with each of those individuals, Spanier was also
knowledgeable oﬁ likely investigative topics due to the fact that Legal Counsel had been
* keeping him informed of all the information subpoenaed by the Grand Jufy from the
University.

On March 22, 2011, Spanier was interviewed by law enforcement authorities.
Spanier wés questibned extensively about his knowledge of, and involvement with, the
. is knowledge of the Michael McQueary |

allegations from early in the 2000’s. Spénier stated that he was not aware of the 1998

incident involving Sandusky and allegations of inappropriate ‘behavior, nor was he
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aware of any pohce report involving that matter Spanier repeat
was rarely informed of any Penn State University Police involvements or investigations.
Spanier stated .that sexual aesault allegations would not be reported to. him and that he
only reviewed statistical summaries of the Penn State Police Debartment that did not '
contain case details. Spanier did say that, sometime between 2000 and 2002, although
he was unsure of the date, he was informed that a staff member saw an incident
involving Sandusky‘wnh a child in a Penn State shower. He stated that he was
‘informed of this 5" Gary Shuitz and Tim Curley, andthen he_ was telct that the staff
member observed Sandusky “horse playing around” with a child in a Penn State locker

room shower. He further expla ned that he was told the staff 1 memher only observed

this from a distance and was not sure of what he saw and that the staff member may

»

have mlsconstrued or misinterpreted what he observed Spanier stated
never been told the name of the staff member and only [earned it was McQueary a few
weeks before Spanier’s interview by law enforcement authorities. Spanier further stated
. that he told Curley that, if there were no other details of what was observed in the
shower, then Curley should contact Sandusky and inform himk that he should no longer
bring children into the Penn State facilities. Spanier further stated that he, Sehultz', and
Curley also decided that the- Second Mile should be contacted and told about the
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restriction. Spanier specifically stated that his oniy meeting
with Curley and Schultz lasted five to fifteen minutes. Spanier also specifically stated
that he never heard anything further about the matter or any other allegations of

miscondtlct against Sandusky. Later in the interview, Spanier stated that he believed
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Curley did inform him that he bad successfully spoken with Sandusky and the Second
Mile about the University’s restrictions.

The Board of Trustees was never informed in 1998 or 2001 about the conduct of -
Jérry Sandusky. Likewise, Spanier failed to inform anyone on-the Board of Trljstees

about: the Grand Jury investigation; the Grand Jury subpoenas issued to the University,

to discuss the matter with Spanier, Spaniér told them he could reveal very littie because
of the Grand Jury secrecy rules. Spanier would employ this excuse re'peétédly to mask
details of the investigatioh and the extent of 'hié past involvement from the Board of
Trustees. Legal counsel Baldwin testified that she repeatedly instructed Spanier that he
was'free to discuss the investigation énd the su‘bstance of~ his testimony before the
Grand Jury. Baldwin specificalty related this {o Spanier in April of 2011, in writing, when
the Boérd requested information aboutlthe in.ves,tiga’tion.20 Chairman of t‘he}Board
Garban advised Spanier that He would need to advise the Board bf Trustees, at least in
ssion, about the newspaper story revealing a Grand Jury investigation of
Sandusky. The next board meetihg scheduled was in May 2011. Spanier directed |

Baldwin to speak to the Board in executive session a

20 s s a PP Afann b [ sn ot nting i th :
When Spanier testified before the Investigating Grand Jury on April 13" of 2011, he was never

instructed by the Grand Jury Judge that his testimony was secret or that he was prohibited from publically
disclosing that testimony. In fact, he was specifically advised by the Supervising Judge of the Grand Jury
that he was free to disciose his testimony. '
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procedures of an investigating grand jury. She belleved from her discussions with
Spanler leading up to the May board meetlng, that Spanier would inform the Board that
the Grand Jury investigation not only involved allegations of sexual assault of a minor in
: Clinton County~ but also indluded the 1998 and 2001 incidents that had occurred in Penn
State's facilities. Baldwin also believed that Spanier would infdrrn the Board about the
| various Grand Jury subpoenas that hrad been issued to thé University seeking testimony
and evidence regarding Sandusky’s acts of misconduct. Baldwin testified that Spanier -
was absolutely ob!igéted to inform the Board of these matters and that he clearly
understood this .obligation. |

At the executive session of the Board in May 29‘}1, Legal Counsel Baldwin
‘provided her report about Grand Jury practice and process to members}o_f the Board.
~ After she finished her presentatlon she -was stunned when bpanrer immediately
directed her to Ieave the room. In fact, she was so taken aback that, in gathering her
papers and possessions to leave, she left her purse in the board room. She later had to
ask someone to retrieve her personal possessions from the Board meeting. It was her
understanding that Spanier was to address the Board members re_garding the
substance, known at that time,' of the criminal investigdtion. into Sandusky's ‘activities.
Members of the Board of Trusfees who -were in attendance at the executive session
have a!! Asf.ated that Spanier never informed them of any connection between the Grand
Jury investigation of Sandusky and Penn State. Quite to the contrary, Spanier
specifically in formed the Board that the investigatio tion had nothing to do with Penn State
and that the investigation was regarding a child in Chnton County without afflllatron with

Penn State. Spanier also told the Board that he couia say little more about the matter

no
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~ because of secrecy that had been imposed upon him by the Grahd Jury. After the May
2011 executive session with the Board, Spanier provided no other information regarding
the investigaiion, his involvemerit with 1998 ‘and 2001 incidents, or Penn-State’s duties
an_dA responses to Grand Jury prbcess. Spanier made no further mention of the matter
to the Board until forced to address the issue when Sandusky, Cu'rléy, and Schultz were
arrested in Novembér 2011. |

Numerous Board members testified that, when informed of the arrests, they were

-~

~ completely surprised and- stunned. At ies of hastily called board meetings on

W
w
1)

Saturday and Sunday, November 5th & 6th, 2011, Spanier was still attempting to hide
behind claims of grandjury secrecy when questioned aboui\his knowledge of the
investigafion and his failure to disclose that kﬁowledge to the Bba,rd. .

The press reléase issued by Spanier on Saturday, November 5, 2011, read as
follows:

STATEMENT FROM PRESIDENT SPANIER:
The allegations about a former coach are troubling, and it is

~ appropriate that they be investigated thoroughly. Protecting
children requires the utmost vigilance. o

- With regard to the other presentments, | wish to say that Tim
Curley and Gary Schultz have my unconditional support. |
have known and work daily with Tim and Gary for more than
16 years. | have complete confidence in how they have
handled the allegations about a former university. employee.

" Tim Curley and Gary Schultz operate at the highest levels of
honesty, integrity, and compassion. | am confident the
record will show that these charges are groundless and that
they conducted themselves professionally and appropriately.
GRAHAM SPANIER ‘

Penn State has heard from the aftorneys representing both
Tim Curley and Gary Schultz, they have released the
following statements:

- ATTORNEY TOM FARRELL:
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“Gary Schultz is innocent of all charges. We believe in the
legal system, and we believe that it will vindicate him. We
will fight these charges in court, and Gary Schultz will be

R R 2P £t ¥

proven innocent of all of them.

ATTORNEY CAROLINE ROBERTO:

“Tim Curley is innocent of all charges against him. We will
vigorously challenge the charges in court and we are
_confident he will be exonerated.”

By Sunday, most members of the Board had copies of the Grand Jury
Presentrﬁent. Members were éompletely stunned by the extent of Sandusky’s crimes
and the extent to which these crimes invo.lved Pénn State and its facilities. Many Board
members were completely dismayéd at Spanier's attempt to downplay the charges and
vouch for the innoceﬁée of Gary Schultz and Tim Curley. On Sunday, in what was
describéd as often conten’;ious and angry exchanges, Spanier waé directed—without
ication=.o-iésue a press re!eéée on behalf of the University that specifically did
not comment on the nature or veracity of the charges and that focused on concern for
the victims and provided assurances that the University wo-“.!d fully cooperate and take
whatever measures .neéessary to prevent this from ever habpening again. The
Secretary of the Board of Trustees, Paula Ammerman, aiéd corroborated the Boérd
members regarding the explicit direct'lons related to Spanier.about the press release.

On Sunday evening, November 6, 20ﬁ, Spanier called together Penn State
press officers and other senior mémbers_ of his stéff. They met in his office, whereupon
 he prqvided them with a draft press release that he had prepared. The primary focus of
| this press release was upon the proclaimed innocence of Tim Qurley and Gary Schultz
and the University's pledge to support therﬁ through this process. There was no

mention of the victims or the criminal activities of Sandusky. When it was suggested

that he put in at least one line. about the victims, Spanier acquiesced and added a
30
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sentence. Sorﬁe of thosé staff members present, including Paula Atﬁmerman, knew
what the Board had directed Spanier to do in this press release. They were surprised
by Spanief’s vehemenée in supporting Curley and Schultz and his willingness to directly
ig‘nore the directives of the Board of Trustees. HoWever, there were no protests of
attempts to remind Spanier of his duty and obligation fo the Board of Trustees.?! |

In the early hours of Noverhber 7,2011, Spanier released a sta’_tément that again

reiterated his support for Curley and SChAUltZ. The statement largely ignored the nature

b ]
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publication- of this press reiease. ’iv'lem.bers were astonished and infuriated.  The
contents of this press release not only I.arg‘e!y contradicted the Board’s instruction to
Spénier, but it continued to démonstraté an affiliation by Spanier and the University, not
only with Schultz and Curley, but with their crimihal defense.

Several more meetings would occur between Spanier and Board members over
the next two days. Again, Spanier never disclosed to the Board, or of any of its
members, despite continUous conversations about the crimes charged, that he was
knowledgeable about and had been im)olved in both theA1998 and 2001 episodes.

Legal counsel Baldwin testified that Spanier repeatedly informed her and others that he

Lovmmrar i

knew nothing about the 1998 activities of Sandusky or the University police investigation

of Sandusky. ‘However, as time went on, she observed that Spanier's discussions

21 yWhen asked why they remained silent, these senior staff members and Penn State officials all provided
similar responses. They said that Graham Spanier was a controlling President who did not easily brook
contrary advice or anything he might view as disloyalty. ‘
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even‘tual‘ly‘came to believe} that Spanier not only had‘ knotrvrt of the 1998 episode but
clearly recollected he had been involved with that matter. | |

On November 9, 2011 the Board of Trustees of Penn State termmated Graham
Spanler as the Pre3|dent of the University. The Board of Trustees also dlrected that
Unlversrty personnel were to cooperate with the law enforcement investigation of Jerryl
Sandusky and Penn State. Almost imrnediately following those two events, actual
oomplian'ce with the Grand Jury subpoenas (past and present) and cooperation with the

n to be realized. Law enforcement investigators, .working in

electronically stored data and began a lengthy process of review and analysis. For the
first four months vof 2012, Iarge amounts of evidence and data—much of which had
been sought and subpoenaed for’more than a year nrior—was uncovered and provided
to investigators. This evidence included significant emails from 1998 reflecting
knowledge of, and involvementwith, the investigation into Sandusky’'s showering with
two young boys in May of 1998. In addition, significant emails were discovered,
reflecting direct evidence of involvement by Graham Spanier, Gary Schultz, and Tim
Curley in the failure of Penn State to report to Chlld welfare or law enforcement

authorities the crimes reported by Michael McQueary |n February of 2001 Addttlonally,

RA.. [

and other materials. Much ©
highly valuable and were utilized in the subsequent criminal trial of Sandusky. This

evidence included copies of letters that Sandusky sent to a number of his victims, lists

I
b

EXHIBIT A



of the children who attended the Second Mile camps with Sandusky's notations next to

their names, and photographs of a number of Sandusky's victims.

Endangering the Welfare of Childfen

Graham Spanier, Tim Curley, and Gary Schultz engaged in a repeated pattern of

Penn State facilities, both before his retirement in
‘young boYs; Spanier, Curley, and Schultz were all well aware of the extent to which
. Sandusky would use the campus in his connection with the Second Mile; This included
'Second Mile camps and other activities, és wéll as Sandusky's use of Penn State for his
‘workout and shower sessions with young boys. The police investiéation involving
Victim 6 ceﬁainly pr_oVided an indicatidn of the issues involved wfth Sandusky bringing -
children onto campus to us'e» the 'facilities. When McQueary reported the assault .in

'February of 2001, the first response should have been an immediate report to law

should “confess to having a problem’.

| administrators, who formed the very apex of decision making and power at Penn State,

22 ge February 27, 2001 email marked as Exhibit 8.
2 goe handwritten notes of Schultz marked as Exhibit 6.
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was'created out of a desire to shield Sandusky from the critnioal process and,‘perhaps
most intportahtly, to spare the University tremendous negative oublicity and
embarrassment. o

Chief Harmon testified_-t.hat all Gary Schultz (or, for that rqatter, Tim Curley or
‘Graham_ Spanier) need have done was to et him know an eyewitness observed
Sandusky and a youngd boy in a shower together on campus and that there was
' obserVed physical contact (let alone the actual sexual assault McQueary described to

them during the meeting). Chief Harmon pointe ted out in his testimony that the need to

he observed that it would have likely led to a reexamination of the 1998 incident.®*
Tragically, this did not happen. The conduct of the three administrators focused on only
two things: not reporting this to any outside agency and taking steps (unenforceable as
they may be) to limit Sandusky from bringing children onto the Penn State campus.

Ttte Grand Jury concludes that Graham Spanier, Tim Curley and Gary Schultz
endangered the welfate of children by failing to reoort the incident witnessed by Michael
McQueary to any law enforcement or child welfare agency. There was never any effort
‘made to locate, identifv. or otherwise protect Victim 2 from foreseeable future harm. In
" fact, by notlfymg Sandusky they were aware of the mcndent and not informing the police
oracl relfare agency, Spa.n.ier. Curle d Schultz placed Victim 2 in even greater

danger. Sandusky was placed on notice that others had been informed of his abuse of

Victim 2.

% This is in fact precisely what happened a decade later. Sandusky was conwcted as a result of a fresh
exammatlon of the evidence in this case.
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The co'ntinued cover up of this incident and the ongoing failure to report piaced -
- every mindr male child who would come into contact with Sandusky in the future in
grave jeopardy of being abused. - The actual harm realized by this wanton failure is
staggering. For example, a jury has convicted Sandusky of various sexuail offenses for
the followiﬁg victims: |

. Vicﬁm 1, between the years 2005 and 2008.

o Victim 2, for the 2001 assault witnessed by McQueary.

- the same time frame as the Victim 2 assault).
.o Victim 5, whd was abused in the Lasch Buiiding. in August of 2,001,
several months after Curley had supposedly “pbanned” Sandusky frdm
bringirig children on campus.

« Victim 9, between thie years 2005 and 2008,

The depth of abuse and number of yic’tims may never be fully realized. The

L£e_

Grand Jury witnessed firsthand the devastating ef

cts of
" victims. We find that Spanier, Curiey, and Schultz had an ongoing duty to report fhis
behavior and the overall supervisory responsibility for minor children they"khew to
frequent the campus with Sandusky. Their failure to report Sandusky to authorities from
2001 through 2011 directly endangered Victims 1, 2, 3, 5 and 9 and allowed Sandusky

to abuse them between 2001 and 2008.

w)
w
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Spanier Perjury

- Graham Spanier testified before this Grand Ju.ry regarding his oversight of one of
the largest and most complex universities in the United States. He {estified that Curley
nd-Schultz came to him around 2002 to report an incident in which a staff member of
Curley’é had witnessed Sandusky horsing 'around in the shower with a younger child.
He stated the staff member was apparently a little uncomfo.rf with the activity, so he
brought it to Curley’s atteﬁtion. Spanier stated Schultz and Curley never identified who

- b o~ e
the date of his

made the report and Spanier still did not know"w'n_o it was as ©
testimohy He testiﬁed that he told Schultz and Curley that, since that kind.of behavior
could be misconstrued, hlS advice would be they tell Sandusky not to bring Kids into
Penn State facilities and that they notify the Second Mile of the incident. Spanler
testlfted this all-occurred in a ten- to fifteen-minute meetmg

Spanler acknowledged there was no discussion about trylng to iocate the child.
He also told the Grand Jury there was no discussion about reporting the matter to police
or a child welfare agency. He also said he had n.o knowledge 6f the 1998 incident’
‘ invovlvin’g‘ Victim 6 prior to 2011. He claimed .thé 1998 matter was never discussed
‘ chultz in deciding how to handle the incident reported by
‘McQueary. Spanier denied he wés ever given ény indication the 2001 inéideht could
" have been sexual in nature.

The Grand Jury finds that Graham Spanier made materially false statements

under oath in an official proceeding on Aprit 13, 2011. Spanier claimed on muitiple

- 36
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occasiona that he had no knowledge of the 1998 incident when it occurred, during the
decision making process in.2001, or at any point up until 2011. We find this claim was
made to. mislead the Grand Jury. This clalmA conflicts with all of the evidence we
received regarding hpw important matters were dealt with at Penn State. Gary Schultz
would ‘routinely keep Spanier apprised of significant police’matters, pattiCUlarIy ones .
that involved the football team and generated media scrutiny. Spanier was obviously
kept in the loop on this matter as Schultz copied him on emails that dlscussed the status

tion, One need only look to the 2001 incident to see ‘how

3
®
(ﬂ

@
]

Schultz would immediately seek out Spanier on an issue of importance. In 1998,
Sandusky was arguably tne most high profile individual on campu's. ether than Joe “
Paterno. Sandusky was also a current employee being tnvestlgated by the police
department for unlawful sexual contact with a minor in the football bundmg Schuitz
 would have been negllgent in his duties to not notify the Athletic Department and the
President.

Spanier made a materially false statement when he denied that he, Curley, and
Schultz ever discussed turmng the 2001 incident over to a child protection agency. This
was the course of action that was considered, at one point even suggested by Schultz
and ultimatelyvrejected in an email exchange where Spanier extols the “humane” nature
of an approach that did not include reporting Sandusky to outside authorities.
~ toid by Curley and Schultz that the 2001 incident was horseplay and made someone
" uncomfortable. The previously discussed electronic communications between the three

_ make clear they are discussing an event that invelves the abuse of a child.

w)
-~
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Obstruction of Justice and Criminal Conspiracy -

Graham Spanier, Tim Curley, and Gary Schultz conspired among each other and
did in fact engage in rhany acts to obstruct justice between 2001 and the present. The

acts of obstruction and conspiracy include, but are not limited to the following:

o« The review‘andknoWIedge of the 1998 allegations.

. Schultz contacted Chief Harmon to detetmi_ne the availabiiity of the 1998
police report b_Ut never disclosed thé information received by Paterno.

. The failure to report McQueary's eyewitness account of a sexual assault.

+ Schultz informing John McQueary the matter was being investigated and

looked into when it was not.

The willful failure to alert anyone about Sandusky from February of 2001
through the course of this investigation.

« The numerous lies told by Spanier, .Schultzv, and Curley to this grand jury.
¢ The total lack of complia'née with the Grand Jury’s requests for
information, such as Subpoena 1179. |

« Schultz hid the existence of pertinent files and notes.
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e Curley failed to‘conduct a search for pertinent documents and materials
lnvolvmg Sandusky.

o Spanier hid the ex13tence of emails and other forms of commumca’uon

« Spanier failed to disclose his role in the 2001 incident to the Board of

Trustees.

ev information from his senior staff charged with

'~q

managing the Sandusky situation throughout 2011.%°

Spanier’s Failure to Report

The sexual assault of Victim 2 should have been reported to the Pennsylvaﬁia
‘Depaﬁmer‘ of Public Welfare and/or a law enfo.rc,»ment agency. Graham Spanier, by
| virtue of his posmon within the Umvers1ty, had a legal obl|gat|on and responsibility to

report or to cause a report to be made within forty-eight hours to a child seivices

agency.

25 1t should be noted that Spanier continues to mislead with numerous public statements that conain demonstrably
false statements. '

39.
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From:
Sent:
To:

Cc: -
Subject:

‘Gary C, Schultz <ges2@psu.edu>

Wednesday, May 06, 1998 2:06 PM
Tim Curley

Spanier-Graham (GBS)

Re: Joe Paterno

Will do. Since we talked tonight Pve learned that the Public Welfare people will interview the individual Thursday.

At 05:24 PM 5/5
> have touched
>

rley wrote;

770" Y
base with the coach. Keep us posted. Thanks.

>TimCurley
sTmceI@nsu.adn
>"“"-"""F"“"‘—.
>

>
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From: . Gary C. Schultz <gcs2@psu.edu>

Sent: ’ Tuesday, June 09, 1998 2:09 ‘AM

To: : Curley-Tim (TMC) :

cec: . . Spanier-Graham (GRS);-Harmon-Thomas (T RH)
Subject: . Re: Jerty - ' . '

They met with Jerry on'Monday and concluded that there was no criminal behavior and the matter was closed asan
investigation. Hewas a ittle emotional and expressed concern as to how this might have adversely affected the child. |

think the matter has been appropriatedly investigated'and | hope it Is now behind us. :
>Date: Mon, 08 Jun 1998 21:59:42 -0400

>To: Tim Curley <tm¢3@psu.edu>

>From: "Gary C. Schult?" <gcs2@psu.edu>

>Subject: Re: Jerty

> R : :

>Tim, | don't have an update at this point. Just before | left for vac, Tom told me that the DPW and Unly Police services
were planning to meet with him. 'l see if this has happened and get back to you. .
>At 10:27 AM 5/30/98 -0400, Tim Curley wrote:

>>Any farther update? '

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>At 09:46 AM 5/19/98 -0400, you wroter -

>>>No, but | don't expect we'll hear anything prior to the end of this week,

>>> -

“>>>At 09:37 PM 5/18/98 -0400, Tim Curley wrote:

>>>>Any update?’.

>>>>

>>>> ’ :

>»5>>At 04:11 AM 5/14/98 -0400, you wrote:

>>>>>Tim, | understand-that a DPW person was here last week; don't know

>>>>>for sure if they talked with Jerry. They decided to have achlld :
>>5>>>psychologist talk to the boys sometime over the next week. We won't know anything before then. !
>>>>> - :

>>>>>At-02:21 PM 5/13/98 -0400, Tim Curley wrote:

>>>>>>Anything new in this départment? Coach Is anxious to know where [t stands.

>roper

>>>>>>Tim Curley

>>>>>>Tmc3@psu.edu

SHOI>>

SH>BO>

SOHH>>

>>>>>Gary C. Schultz .

»>>>>5r, V.P. for Finance and.Businegs/T reasurer
>>>>>208 Old Main .
>>>>>Phone: 865-6574
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>>>>

>>>>Tim Cutley
>>>>Tmci@psu.edu
>e>>

>~>>_>

>>>>

- >>>Gary C, Schultz

>>>Sr. V.P. for Finance and Busmess/’l’ reasurer
»5>208 Old Main

>>>Phone: 865-6574

»>>Fax: 863-8685

>>5 .

>5>

>>>

>>

- >>Tim Curley
>>Img3@psu.edu

C > '

>>

>>

>
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3/21/2012 10:42:54 AM . McQuaide Blasko, Inc, : PageNo4d -
' ‘ . Apphed and Unapplied Timesheets by Working Attorney : o
. From: 02-01-01 Through:04-30-01

Working Attomey (s): Select 9

" Matlter 1.D. Description : . T e Task:Activily Howrs

AN N0 A1
UZ-Uo-ul

4000-465063 PSU - Labor - Hutan Resources PSOlO o 0.60
Conference with J Purdum re boliday pay issue; Confer ence with R Maney re sime '
4000-,490106 PSU - Personnel - Continuing & Distance Bducat ' . 0.50
" Conference with J Elliott re T Marshall; Conference with G Schuliz , .
4000-490143 PSU - Personnel - Mont Alto Campus 2.20

Conference with J Leathers re D Goldenberg; Proparation of correspondence to G -

Spanier; Review of files; Preparation of correspondence.to G Spamer et al; Conférence

thh J Leathcm ' .
4000481582 PSU - Students - Student Affairs ' 2.90

Interoffice conference e camping pb]icy; Legal research re same .

4000-481582 ESU - Students - Student Affais ' . 1.70

Study/analyze documents 16 LGB tenant; Interoffice conference re 'same; Legal research,
Proparation of correspondence to G Spanier et ale same ’

4000-490163 PSU - Personnel - Human Resources S ’ 0.30
Conference with R Maney re R Khalliq , . N S
4000-465026 PSU - Labor - COM - General 10
Preparation of documents re HMC parking K o - ' ‘
#t Total for2/8/2001 ** ) . : . e © 970
02~09-01 - . . |
4000-490143 PSU - Porsonnel - Mont Alto Campus - ‘ 1.60

Review of doctments re T Goldenbcrg Preparation of correspondence to G Spanier;
Preparation of correspondence to J Leathers; Le galresearch .

4000-451558 PSU - Gifts & Crants - Develop andAlmnmRela ' ' - 020
Review of files re Hagan estate - : . o

4000—490117 PSU - Personnel - Coliege of Liberal Aits
Conference with J Battista re R Echemendia; Interoffice conference R

4000-425562 RSU - Contracts - Hershey Medical Center : ' 0.80, .
Review of documents re Purchase of Services Agreement; Intewfﬁce conference re same

4000-465026 PSU - Labor - COM - Géneral ) : 2.60

Conference with L Xushner re HMC parking fees; Preparation of correspondence to L
Kishner re same; Preparation of documents; Legal research

4000-465063 PSU - Labor - Human Resources PS010 ‘ 0.70 .-
Review Schaeffer brief . ‘
¥ Total for2/9/2001 ** ' : o ‘. 700 . .0.00

nn
. 02-11-01

4000-450061 PSU - General - Finance/Business - Centlal o . . 2.90

Conference with G Sehultz re eporting of suspected chlld abuse; chahescaloh re same;
Conference with G Schultz :

02-12-01

o
)
=

ot
pa—y
>

pn ed and Unnm:)lied Timesheets by Working Attorn ey : .
3/21/2012 10:42:54 AM M cQuaido Blasko, Ine. . : PageNo.4
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From: ’ Thomas R, Harmon <HARMON@SAFETY-I.SAF'ETY.I"SU.EDU>
Sent: . 'Monday, February 12, 2001457 PM '

To: ) . ges2@psu.edu

Subject: ' ~* Incidentin 1998

Regarding the incident In 1998 involving the farmer coach, | checked and the incident is documented in our imaged
achives. : . ’

Thomas R, Harmon

Director, University Police

The Pennsylvania State University
30-B Eisenhower Parking Deck

University Park, PA 16802
(214) 865-1864

iRy ool

harmon@police.psu.edu -
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From:  Gary C. Schultz

To:
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Senior Vice President for Finunce and Business/ Freusurer

The Penusyivania State University
208 Old Main -

University Park. PA 16802- 1503
(814} 865-6574

Fax: (R14) 863-7188
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"From:

Cmreds
A1

To: -
Cc:
Subject:

Gary C. Schultz <gcs2@psu.edu>
Monday, Fehruary 26, 2001 1:57 PM

CLyASly &0, AUV~ L0

TMC3@psu.edu

" Coble-Joan (JLC)

Confidential

Tim, I'm assuming that you've got the balil to 1) talk with the subject ASAP regarding thé future appropriate use of the
University facllity; 2) contacting the chalr of the Charitable Organization; and 3) contacting the Dept of Welfare. Asyou

know I'm out of the office for the next two weeks, butif you néed anything from me, please let me know.
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From: - Gary C. Schuitz <ges2@psu.edus>

Sent: - Wednesday, February 28, 2001 2:13 PM

Teo: Graham Spanier; Tim Curley

Subject: - ' Re: Meeting

<html>

Tim and Graham, this Is a more humane and upfront way to handle this.&nbsp; | can support this approach with the
* understanding that we will inform his organization, with or without his caoperation (I think that's what Ttm
proposed).&nbsp; We can play it by ear to declde about the other organization.&nbsp; <br> <br> At 10:18 PM 2/27/01 -
0500, Graham Spanier wrote.<br> <blockquote type=cite cite>Tim:&nbsp; This approach Is accentable ‘to me. &nbsn it .
requires-yau to go a step further and means that youy conversation will be ali the more difficult, Jbut l admire your
willingness to do that'and | am supportive.&nbsp; The only downside for us s if the message jsn't &quot;heard&quot; and
acted upon, and we then become vulnerable for not having reported it.&nbsp; But that can be assessed down.the
road.&nbsp; The approach you outline is humane and a reasonable way to proceed.<br> <br> At 08:10 PM 2/27/01 -0500,
Tim Curley wrote:<br> <blockquote type=cite cite>l had scheduled a meeting with you this afternoon about the subject we
discussed on Sunday. After giving It more thought and talking it over with Joe yesterday-- | am uncomfortable with what we
agreed were the next steps.&nbsp; | am having trouble with going to everyane, but the person Involved. [ think | would be
mare comfortable meeting with the person and tell him about the information we received. { would p!an to tell him we are
aware of the first situation. | would Indicate we feel thére is a problem and we want to assist the individual to get
professional help. Also, we feel a responsibility at some polnt soon to inform his organization and and haybe the other one
about the situation,. if hels cooperative we would work with him to handle informing the organization. If not, we do not
have a cholce and will inform the twa groups. Additionally, | will let him know that his guests are not permitted to use our °
facttities.<b r> <br> | need some help on this one. What do you think about this approach?</blockquote><br>
. <br> - T
Graham B. Spanler<br>
President<br>
The Pennsylvanla State Universlty<br>
201 Old Maln<br>

University Park, Pennsylvania&nbsp; 16802<br> <br> Phone:&nbsp; 814- 865-7611<br> em a!! &n bsp;
gspanlsL@p.sg.esiu_b_v </blockquote><lhtrnl> )

-
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Supplemental Record June 22, 2015 1 expandable folder
Comment: Recieved with loose & clipped papers

Suppiementai Record Juiy 02, 2015 1 pait

Date of Remand of Record:

Amicus Appellee
Pennsylvania Association of Criminal Defense Lawyers Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Brief Brief
Due: June 19, 2015 Filed: May 27, 2015 Due: June 19, 2015 Filed: June 22, 2016

Appellant
Spanier, Graham B.
Brief
Due: May 20, 2015 Filed: May 20, 2015

Reply Brief
Due: July 6, 2015 Filed: July 9, 2015

Reproduced Record
Due: May 20, 2015 Filed: May 20, 2015

¥

Filed Date Docket Entry / Representing Participant Type Filed By

February 19, 2015 Notice of Appeal Docketed
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
February 18, 2015 Docketing Statement Exited (Criminal)

Middle District Filing Office

Neither the Appeiiate Courts ner the Administrative Office of Peansylvaria Gourts assumes any liability
for naccurate or delayed data, 27018 or crissions en tha docket sheets

EXHIBITB



8:49 P.M.

Appeal Docket Sheet
Docket Number: 304 MDA 2015

Page 4 of 9

March 30, 2016

Sealed Recor:1=l-|

Superior Court of Pennsylvania

Filed Date Docket Entry / Representing Participant Type Filed By
March 5, 2015 Docketing Statement Received (Criminal)
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.

March 9, 2015

Comment:

Related Cases - List Consecutively

Middle District Filing Office
Commonwealth v. Gary Charies Schultzz, 280MDA  2015(C.P. Dauphin Co. Nos.
CP-22-CR-0003616-2013 and CP-22-CR-0005164-2011);

Commonwealth v. Timothy M. Curley, 299 MDA 2015 (C.P. Dauphin Co. Nos.
CP-22-CR-0003614-2013 and CP-22-CR-0005165-2011) and

o

Commonweaith  v. Graham B. Spanier, 304 MDA 20
CP-22-CR-0003615-2013).

April 10, 2015 Trial Court Record Received
Dauphin County Special Education
Appeals Panel
Comment: No Opinion
Opinion Received 4-20-15
April 14, 2015 Entry of Appearance - Private
Spanier, Graham B. Appellant Sheehan, Christian David
April 17, 2015 Praecipe for Appearance - Attorney General
Commonwealth of Pnnngvl\mma Anne!_lge Zapp, Amy
April 21, 2015 Application to Stay Briefing Schedule
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
April 23, 2015 Order
Per Curiam
Comment; The certified records in the above-captioned appeals were submitted to this Court under seal, in
compliance with the trial court's orders. The seals on the certified record are LIFTED on a temporary
basis, for the limited purpose of permitting this Court's Central Legal Staff, and judicial staff of the
Panel Judges assigned to decide the case on the merits, to review the pertinent materials .
Employees of this Court are PROHIBITED from disclosing the contents of the previously sealed
documents to anyone outside of this Court.
This Court's Prothonotary is directed to again place the certified record under seal upon
completion of review by this Court.
April 23, 2015 Order Denying Application to Stay Briefing Schedule
Per Curiam
Comment: Upon consideration of the application by Graham B. Spanier to stay
the briefing schedule in the appeal at docket number 304 MDA 2015, the
application is hereby DENIED.
No further applications for stay or extension of the briefing scheduies
shall be granted in the appeals at the above-captioned docket numbers.
May 1, 2015 Application for Relief

Appellant Spanier, Graham B.

Neitner the Appeiiate Courts nor the Administrative Office of Pennsyivania Courts assumes any lability
for inaccurate or delayed data, errors or omissions on the docket shaets
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Filed Date Docket Entry / Representing Participant Type Filed By
May 4, 2015 Order Granting Application for Relief

Per Curiam

Comment: Upon consideration of the May 1, 2015 appiication by appeiiant,
Graham B, Spanier, for permission to review the certified record in the
above-captioned case, the application is hereby GRANTED.

May 18, 2015 Petition for Admission Pro Hac Vice
Spanier, Graham B. Appellant Ainslie, Elizabeth K.

May 18, 2015 Petition for Admission Pro Hac Vice
Spanier, Graham 8. Appellant Ainslie, Elizabeth K.

May 18, 2015 Petition for Admission Pro Hac Vice
Spanier, Graham B. Appellant Ainslie, Elizabeth K.

May 19, 2015 Order Granting Application to be Admitted Pro Hac Vice
Per Curiam
Comment. Upon consideration of the petition of Elizabeth K. Ainslie,
Esquire, on behalf of appellant, for admission pro hac vice of Judson O.
Littleton, Esquire, having satisfied requirements of Pa.R.Civ.P. 1012.1,
the motion is hereby GRANTED as follows:
Judson O. Littleton, Esquire is permitted to appear before this
Court limited to the above-captioned appeal, but shall not act as
attorney of record. See Pa.B.A.R. 301(a) and (b).

May 18, 2015 Order Granting Application to be Admitted Pro Hac Vice

Per Curiam

Comment: Upon consideration of the petition of Elizabeth K. Ainslie,
Esquire, on behalf of appellant, for admission pro hac vice of Jeffrey B.
Wall, Esquire, having satisfied requirements of Pa.R.Civ.P. 1012.1, the
motion is hereby GRANTED as follows:
Jeffrey B. Wall, Esquire is permitted to appear before this Court
limited to the above-captioned appeal, but shall not act as attorney of
record. See Pa.B.A.R. 301(a) and (b).

May 19, 2015 Order Granting Application to be Admitted Pro Hac Vice

Per Curiam

Comment: Upon consideration of the petition of Elizabeth K. Ainslie,
Esquire, on behalf of appetlant, for admission pro hac vice of Brent J.
Mclintosh, Esquire, having satisfied requirements of Pa.R.Civ.P.
1012.1, the motion is hereby GRANTED as follows:
Brent J. Mcintosh, Esquire is permitted to appear before this

Court limited to the above-captioned appeal, but shall not act as

attorney of record. See Pa.B.A.R. 301(a) and (b).

May 20, 2015 Reproduced Record Filed
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
Document Name: Under Seal

May 20, 2015 Application to Seal
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.

Neither the Appeliate Courts nor the Administrative Office of Pennsylvania Courts assumes any liability
for inaccurate or delayed data, errors or omissions on the docket sheets
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May 20, 2015 Reproduced Record Filed
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
Document Name: Redacted
May 20, 2015 Application to Seal
Appeflant Spanier, Graham B.
May 20, 2015 Appeiiant's Brief Fiied
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
Document Name: Under Seal
May 20, 2015 Application to Seal
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
May 20, 2015 Appellant's Brief Filed
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
Document Name: Redacted
May 20, 2015 Application to Seal
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
Way 21, 2015 Reply Letter{s) Printed
Superior Court of Pennsylvania
May 26, 2015 Reply Received (Argument)
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
May 26, 2015 Other
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
Comment: Copy of t/c order dated 5/20/15.
May 26, 2015 Order
Per Curiam
Comment: Upon consideration of appeilant's May 20, 2015 application for
leave to file the brief and reproduced record under seal, filed and
docketed four separaie times, this Court confirms that aii filings and
the certified record are under seal. Therefore the applications are
hereby DENIED as moot.
May 27, 2015 Amicus Curiae Brief
Amicus Pennsylvania Association of Criminal
Defense Lawyers
May 29, 2015 Entry of Appearance ~ Attorney General
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Appellee Peterson, Jennifer Anne
June 8, 2015 Other
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
Comment;: Copy of t/c order did 5/28/15
June 22, 2015 Appellee's Brief Filed

Appellee Commonweaith of Pennsylvania
Comment: Timely filed per 3-day mail rule

Neither the Appeiiate Courts nor the Administrative Office of Pennsyivania Courts assumes any liability
for inaceurate or delayed data, ecrors or erssions on the docket sheets
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June 24, 2015 Order

Per Curiam

Comment. Upon consideration of the supplemental record, filed in this Court
on June 22, 2015, the following is hereby CRDERED:
The supplemental record shall be REMANDED to the trial court
for a period of time not to exceed 10 days, during which time

PR ha H
counse! for appellant shall crganize and label the documents therein,

Once counsel has organized and labeled the supplemental record, the
triat court shall certify it and notify this Court that it is ready to be
returned.

Jurisdiction is retained.

July 8, 2015 Argument Letter Sent
Middle District Filing Office
July 8, 2015 Argument Letter Sent
Superior Court of Pennsylivania
July 8, 2015 Acknowledgement of Argument Notice
Appellee Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
July 9, 2015 Appeliant's Reply Brief
Appellant Spanier, Graham 8.
Comment; Timely filed per 3 day rule
July 9, 2015 Acknowledgement of Argument Notice
Spanier, Graham B. Appellant Ainslie, Elizabeth K.
Spanier, Graham B. Appeliant Littleton, Judson O.
Spanier, Graham B. Appellant Mcintosh, Brent J.
Spanier, Graham B. Appellant Sheehan, Christian David
Spanier, Graham B. Appellant Wali, Jeffrey B.

Neither the Appetate Courts nor the Administrative Office of Pennsylvania Courts assumes any liabifity
for inaceurate or delayed data, errors or omissions on the docket sheets,
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August 5, 2015 Order
Per Curiam

Comment: AND NOW, to wit, this 5th day of August 2015, the following Order is entered.

In order to maintain the dignity and decorum of the judicial proceedings, this order shail apply to
guests and representatives of the media observing the A22 panel of the Superior Court sitting in
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania on August 11 and August 12, 2015,

1. Electronic Devices:

a. Guests and media may not utilize taptop computers in the courtroom. Anyone improperly utilizing
such a device will be removed and refused reentry. EXCEPTION: Attomeys appearing before this
Court are permitted to use laptops as necessary for argument.

b. Guests and media may possess cell phones, smart phones, tablets, and other communicative
electronic devices. All devices are to be silent and nondisruptive.

¢. No device may be used in the courtroom to take photographs or to record, broadcast, or transmit
the argument proceedings or any account of the proceedings. This includes, but is not limited to, live
biogging and tweeting, pubiishing stories in oniine periodicais, or posting photographs and quotations .
Improper or disruptive use of technology will result in immediate removal from the courtroom. Reentry
will be refused.

2. Conduct: To minimize disruption, observers are asked to remain in their seats until the argument
at bar is concluded. They are then free to leave the courtroom as the next case is called.

3. Media Interviews: No media interviews shall be conducted in the courtroom or in the antechamber
to the courtroom,

4. Sanctioning Improper Conduct: Guests and representatives of the media causing disruption to the
proceedings will be removed from the courtrcom. Further misconduct or intentional disruption by a
guest or representative of the media may subject that person to the penalties of contempt under
applicable statute, order, or rule.

August 11, 2015 Argued
Superior Court of Pennsylvania
December 29, 2015 Praecipe for Withdrawal of Appearance - Private
Spanier, Graham B. Appellant Sheehan, Christian David
December 29, 2015 Entry of Appearance - Private
Spanier, Graham B. Appellant Hanlon, Emily Joan
January 22, 2016 Reversed
Bowes, Mary Jane
Comment: Jurisdiction relinquished
February 5, 2016 Application for Reargument
Appellee Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
February 22, 2016 Answer to Application for Reargument
Appellant Spanier, Graham B.
March 30, 2016 Order Denying Application for Reargument
Per Curiam

Comment: IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:
THAT the application filed February 5, 2016, requesting reargument of the
decision dated January 22, 2016, is DENIED.

Neither the Appetiate Caurts nor the Administrative Office of Peansylvania Courts assumes any liabilit
PP Y Y
fer inaccurate or detayed data, errors or omissions on the docket sheets.
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Journal Number: J-A22011-15
Consideration Type: Oral Argument - Panel
Listed/Submitted Date:  August 11, 2015

Panel Composition:

The Honorable Mary Jane Bowes Judge
The Honorable Patricia H. Jenkins Judge
The Honorable William H. Platt Judge

Final Disposition: Yes

Related Journal No: J-A22011-15 Judgment Date: January 22, 2016
Category: Decided Disposition Author: Bowes, Mary Jane
Disposition: Reversed Disposition Date: January 22, 2016
Disposition Comment:  Jurisdiction relinquished.

Dispositional Filing: Opinion Filing Author: Bowes, Mary Jane
Filed Date: 1/22/12016 12:00:00AM

Filed Date: February 5, 2016
Disposition: - Order Denying Application for Reargument
Disposition Date: March 30, 2016

Record Remiitai:

Neither the Appeliate Courts nor the Administrative Office of Pennsylvania Courts assumes any labibty
for inaccurate or delayed data, eirors or omissions on the docket sheets,
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Testimony at Sandusky triai shows missed chances

Published June 18, 2012 0 0
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The eyewitness testimony that confronted jurors in Jerry Sandusky's child-molestation rial this week was disturbing not only for
its graphic descriptions of sex with boys, but for what it said about the people who surrounded and maybe even protected the
once-revered Penn State assistant coach,

Eight accusers took the witness stand and described how Sandusky molested them in campus showers, hotel bathrooms, a
basement bedroom, a sauna used by the football team — right under the noses of his friends, colieagues, family members and
acquaintances.

The Sandusky story, the way authorities have framed it, is one littered with missed chances to stop a rapist who preyed on
chiidren for years.

Prosecutors have hinted that top university officials knew far more about Sandusky's alieged proclivities than they have let on,
submitting a document Monday that says Penn State's former vice president — himself facing charges related to the scandal —
maintained a file on Sandusky a decade ago. A Penn State trustee told The Associated Press he now suspacts a cover-up.

Yet evidence and testimony from the trial also show there were plenty of people. not just those at the highest levels of the
university, who had ample opportunity to stop a man accused of violating 10 boys over 15 years:

— A janitor faifed to tell authorities he allegedly caught Sandusky performing o7al sex on a boy in a campus shower a dozen
years ago.

— A district attorney with a reputation for prosecuting cases involving children and sexual abuse victims declined to charge
Sandusky over a 1998 molestation allegation even though the detective who investigated thought it was a solid case. The DA,
Ray Gricar, disappeared in 2005 and was declared tegally dead last year.

— School district officials were skeptical of abuse claims brought by the young man known in court papers as Victim 1 because,
the accuser testified, Sandusky was considered to have a "heart of gold." Victim 1's allegations eventually triggered the state
investigation that produced charges.

— One accuser testified he screamed out for help at least once when Sandusky's wife, Dottie, was in the house He doesn't
know whether she heard his cries.

- And, famously, coaching assistant Mike McQueary saw Sandusky having what he beiieved to be anal sex with 3 young boy in
2001. But his report to Athletic Director Tim Curley and Vice President Gary Schuliz went nowhere. McQueary's dad testified that
during a conversation, Schuiltz said he was suspicious of Sandusky, and NBC reported this week that emaits between former
university President Graham Spanier and Schultz aiming to keep McQueary's allegation from going further were turned over {0
the attorney generat.

http://www.foxnews.com/us/201 2/06/16/psu-trial-shows-missed-chances-cover-up-suspe... 12/18/2015
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— Others also saw Sandusky engaging in behavior that was at ieast odd, if not criminal. Longtime assistant coach Tom Bradley
walked into the shower when one boy was with Sandusky, the accuser testified, and a wrestling coach told jurors he saw
Sandusky and a child rolling on the floor.

— Several accusers said their parents or caregivers failed to grasp what was happening to them. Victim 4 testified that one
weekend he did not want to go with Sandusky and told his mother, “I'm pretty sure he's gay," but she dismissed the idea. "She
said, oh, whatever, this is just one of your lies,” he told jurors. He also said at one point he told his grandmother to tell Sandusky
he wasn't home when he called.

Victim 1 testified that when he asked his mother about "a website for people who do things to children,” and she asked why, he
said it was "to see if Jerry was on there.” He said he didn't think she totally understood. And Victim 9 toid jurors he described
Sandusky to his mother as "a touchy-feely type of a person,” but she pressured him to spend time with the former coach.

Keith Masser, a Penn State trustee, said in an interview that he initially thought the scandal was about a failure of administrative
aversight of the football program. Now he suspects it goes deeper.

When the board of trustees ousted Spanier on Nov. 9, four days after Sandusky’s arest, it was "because we didn't have
confidence in his ability to iead us through this crisis,” Massér said. “We had no idea (at the time) he would he invalved in 2
cover-up."

Masser stressed he was speaking for himself and not the board at targe. and said he wants to be carefut not to draw premature
conclusions. But he said it now appears like "top administration officials and top athletic officials were invoived in making the
decigion to not inform the proper authorities.”

With prosecutors focused on the sex-abuse allegations against Sandusky, the trial isn't intended to yield evidence of a possible
cover-up. That's the job of Louis Freeh, the former EBI director hired by the board of trustees to investigate the scandal. His
report could be released in iate summer.

Spanier, who has not been charged with any crime, did not respond to email and phone messages. His atlorney did not return a
phone call.

The law firm defending Curley and Schultz against charges they lied in their grand jury testimony and failed to report suspect
abuse said in a statsment this week they "conscientiously considered” McQueary's accourit and “deliberated about how ta
responsibly deal with the conduct and handle the situation properly." They did not respand to foliow-up questions posed by the
AP.

Masser said the Fresh investigation is helping Penn State get to the bottom of the scandal.

“| hope the truth comes out, and from a board standpoint it was Judge Freeh's investigation that found these emaits that relate
Spanier, Curley and Schultz to the suspected cover-up," he said. 'l want the alumni to understand and the stakeholiders {o
understand that this independent investigation is uncovering this information.”

Sandusky was charged in November and December with more than 50 counts of abuse. The scandal brought disgrace to Penn
State and led to the ousters of both Spanier and Patemo, the Hall of Fame coach who died in January at age 85.

The testimony of eight of the 10 alleged victims named in a grand jury report prompted disgust and revulsion from Penn State
alumni and others who took to Twitter last waek to express their dismay — and fo call for the heads of anyone involved in
concealing abuse. "Anyone who knew and didn't report should bum!” tweeted one.

The grim depictions of abuse aiso hit at ieasi one former piayer

The accuser known as Victim 4 toid jurors that Sandusky let him wear star linebacker LaVar Arrington's jersey and gave him a
magazine autographed by the former NFL All-Pro. who played at Penn State in the late 1990s.

http://www., foxnews.com/us/2012/06/16/psu-trial-shows-missed-chances-cover-up-suspe... 12/18/2015
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Arrington apologized to the man a day after his testimony, writing in The Washington Post that he felt awfut for having missed the
warning signs.

“He always ssemed mad or kind of distant. | remember distinctly asking him: "Why are you always walking around aft mad, like a
tough guy?" Arrington wrote. "l guess with everything that | had going on, it certainly wasn't a priority for me to try to figure him
out”

Arrington continued, "l hate everything that has happened, and now i must admit | feel even worse, knowing what allegedly was
happening so close to me, and that i was unaware,”

Ann Tenbrunsel, a professor of business ethics at the University of Notre Dame, attributes the faifure to stop Sandusky 10 a
phenomenon she calls “motivated blindness," a tendency, whether subcansgious or deliberate or sometimes both, to ignore
unethical or even criminal behavior by others when you perceive it to be in your best interest to do $o. Motivated blindness
“means 1 don't probe, | don't ask, { don't believe," Tenbrunsel said. "l have evidence in front of me but choose to disregard facts.”

Some people could have kept quiet about their suspicions because they wanted to protect Penn State and its beloved — and
highly lucrative — football program, or their own jobs, she said. Others might not have wanted to believe the sainted Sandusky
capable of the abuse he's now charged with.

"You have all kinds of examples of people who either did not notice, or when they did notice didn't engage in behaviors that
would have stopped it because it wasn't in their best interests to do s0." said Tenbrunsel, co-author of "8lind Spots," & book that
explores why otherwise dacent people sometimes fail to do the right thing.

Seme of the alleged assaults appear to have been interrupted, if unwittingly. One yaung man said Sandusky coerced him nto
engaging in oral sex in a hotel bathroom in Texas around the time of the 1999 Alamo Bowl — Sandusky's last game before
retiring — stopping only when the coach's wife entered the hotel roora. The same accuser, Victim 4, testified about another
occasion in which Bradiey was showering in the team headguarters whiie the aiieged victim and Sandusky were behind 2 curtain
in another stall.

" can't say what (Bradley's) thoughts were, but | think he was suspicious of something because he stayed in the shawer until
everything was dane,” the man testified without elaborating.

SVeIy =s COY

Bradiey did not retum several messages from The Associated Press.

A wrestiing coach told jurors that he found Victim 1 and Sandusky rolling around on the fioor in the high school weight room one
evening.

Joseph Miller said that while he found it odd, he gave the famed coach a pass. "It was Jerry. Jerry Sandusky. He's 2 saint. What
he's doing with kids, it's fantastic,” Milier recalled thinking. "So I didn't think anything of it.”

The trial is scheduled to enter its fifth day Monday as prosecutors near the end of their case. Sandusky deniss all the charges,
saying that while he showered with boys, he never touched them sexually. His attomey has suggested the accusers are twisting
the truth becauss they intend to sue.

Associated Press writers Mark Scolforo and Genaro C. Armas in Bellefonte, Pa., contributed to this report.

http://www.foxnews.com/us/2012/06/1 6/psu-trial-shows-missed-chances-cover-up-suspe... 12/18/2015
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), entered into by and between The
Pennsylvania State University, the only land grant university chartered in the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania, and Graham B. Spanier, Ph.D., is to take effect July 1, 2010.

employed by The Pennsylvania State University (the “University”) as President of the University
since September 1, 1995; and '

WHEREAS, the University wishes to continue the employment of Dr. Spanier as
President of the University in recognition Qf his extraordinary' achicvements, and Dr. Spanier
wishes to continue to serve as the President and be its employee, subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, The University desires to make further arrangements which will suitably
recognize the extraordinary responsibilities and duties of Dr. Spanier and will reward him for his
many unique accomplishments thus far during his tenure as President of the University; and

WHEREAS, both the University and Dr. Spanier intend this Agreement to supersede any
and all prior agreemehts with respect to Dr. Spanier’s employment relationship, with ﬂzc
exception of Section D.3 of the Employment Agreement effective July 1, 2007 (the “Prior
Agréement”); and '

WHEREAS, both the University and Dr. Spanier desire to set forth their respective rights

EXHIBIT D



and obligations in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, by Resolution of January 23, 1982, the Board of Trustees of the University
(the “Board of Trustees™) authorized the Pfcsident of the Board of Trustees (the “President of the
Board”) to enter into employment agreements with certain senior employees in accordance with
the terms of said Resolution; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenaﬁts, and conditions

contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufﬁciency of which are

herebv acknowledgoed. the nartieg aoree as follows
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows
A Term
The University shall continue the employment of Dr. Spanier as its President for a term

from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015 (the "Term"), except as provided in éection H
(“Termination™). Dr. Spanier hereby accepts such employment upon the fcerms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement.

B.  Powers and Duties.

During the Term of this Agreement, Dr. Spanier shall serve as President and perform
such duties and responsibilities that are consistent with his position as President of the University
under the Corporate Charter, the Corporate Bylaws, and the Standing Orders of the Board of
Trustees, as may be amended from time to time, or which may be assigned to him by or under
the authority of the Board of Trustees consistent with his position as President of the University,
including those duties as are set forth in the Resolution of the Board of Trustees adopted on June
11, 1970, as amended on November 19, 1971, May 30, 1975 and September 23, 1977, and as the

same may be amended from time to time during the term of this Agreement'(collectivcly, the
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“Duties”). Dr. Spanier shall devote his full business time attention, skill and efforts to the
- faithful performance of the Duties fo;: the University.

Dr. Spanier and the Board of Trustees acknowledge and agree that the Duties hereunder
shall be limited to those duties customarily performed by presidents of universities comparable in
size and mission to the University, such as educational leadership, faculty and community
relations, budgeting, long range planning, fund raising, development, public relations, student

services, recruitment and retention of personnel, and such other duties as may be authorized or
directed, from time to time, by th
corporate officer of the University so I
Charter or Bylaws of the University.
C. Compensation.
1 Annual Base Salary. As compensation for the services to be performed by
Dr. Spanier pursuant to this Agreement a;md in accordance with industry norms, the University
shall pay to Dr. Spanier an annualized base salary of $700,000 from July 1, 2010 through June
50, 2011 (the “Base Salary”), less applicable deductions. Any increases in Base Salary shall be
based upon the President’s performance duﬁng the preceding fiscal year in connection with the
annual evaluation of his performance, set forth in Section D of this Agreement. During the Term
of this Agreement, Dr. Spéni_er’s Base Salary may be increased, but not decreased.
. 2. Signing Bonus. In consideration of executing this Agreement, Dr. Spanier
shall receive a one-time signing bonus of $200,000 within sixty (60) days of the execution of this

Agreement by both parties.

EXHIBIT D



3. Retention Incentive.  Beginning with the 2011-12 contract year,. Dr.
Spanier shall be eligible to receive an annual retention incentive provided that he completes
service as President to the University through the end of each contract year (June 30). Thg
amount of the retention incentive, if any, shall be at the sole discretion of the Compensation
Council in accordance with the 1982 resolution of the Board of Trustees authorizing the Council
regarding such compensation matters, but shall not exceed twenty percent (20%) of Dr. Spanier’s
then-cungnt annual.base salary. Any retention incentive awarded to Dr. Spanier shall be paid

within sixty (60

YYiuaiii
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dave of the ; ) v
days of th ncius the confract y whi .

4, Retirement Contribution. In addition, the University shall contribute, at its
normai Aiternate Retirement Plan (the “Retirement Plan™) contribution rate (currently 9.29%), to
the purchase of an annuity contract within the meaning of Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code and in accordance with the terms of the Retirement Plan as managed by TIAA-CREF.
- Further, in the event that:

a.  limitations of the Internal Revenue Code do not permit the
University to contribute on a tax-sheltered basis to the Retirement
Plan at its normal contribuﬁon rate; or

b. iess than fifteen (15%) percent of Dr. Spanier's Base Salary is
contributed to Dr. Spanier’s Retirement Plan, the University shall
pay to Dr. Spanier, as current compensation, an amount equal to

the difference between the amount actually contributed to the

Sraa il WiGe

Retirement Plan and the greater of: (1) the amount that the

University cannot contribute to the Retirement Plan because of

EXHIBIT D



Internal Revenue Code limitations; or (2) fifteen (15%) percent of
Dr. Spanier's Base Salary.
5. Retirement Plan Equivalency. The Retirement Plan  Equivalency
referenced in Section D.3 of the Prior Agreement shall continue during this Agreement. The

Retirement Plan Equivalency shall be amended such that Dr. Spanier shall be required to remain
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terminated without Cause, or his death or disability. Dr. Spanier shall not receive the benefits of
the Retirement Plan Equivalency if his employment as President is terminated for Cause, or if he
voluntarily resigns from his employment as President, or if following the conclusion of his
service as President, his faculty appointment is terminated in accordance with the University’s
rules for tenured members of the faculty. A document separate and apart from this Agreement
shall govern the five year extension of the Retirement Plan Equivalency to June 30, 2017.

D.  Annual Evaluation.

No later than the week of the May 2011 meeting of the Board of Trustees, and each year
thereafter, Dr. Spanier shall provide to the President of the Board of Trustees, the Vice President
of the Board, the immediate past President of the Board and the Chairperson of the Commi;tee
on Finance and Physical Plant of the Board (the “Review Group”) an assessment of his
performance as President measured against the goals and objectives for the then-current fiscal

year, as well as his proposed goals and objectives for the next fiscal year. The Review Group

will review and provide alppropriatc feedback and direction with respect to Dr. Spanier’s past
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performance and future goals and objeétives. To aid the Review Group in its annual evaluation,
Dr. Spanier agrees to furnish to the President of the Board such additional oral or written reports

as the Review Group may request.

E. Benefits and Reimbursements.

1. Standard Benefits. Dr. Spanier shall be eligible to participate in all of the
employee benefit plans of the University applicable to senior executives.

2. Supplemental Life Insurance.

a. In addition to life insurance provided as a standard benefit in
Section E.1, the University has provided a life insurance death
benefit of $1,000,000 for Dr. Spanier since September 1, 1997.
The death benefit of this life insurance policy has escalated, and
shall continue to be escalated annually on each July 1 during the
Term of this Agreement, by the percentage increase in the
Consumer Price Index (CPI-U, All Items, for All Urban
Consumers, 1984=100) by multiplying the amount of life

insurance in force for the contract year then ending by the sum of:

benefit at the conclusion of the Term of this Agreement. Provided,
however, CPI increases in the death benefit shall cease as of the

conclusion of the Term of this Agreement. In all other respects,
-6-
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this life insurance coverage shall be mainta.iricd in accordance with
the terms and conditions}of the Universitfs plan of life insurance
for its senior executives.
3. Supplemental Health Insurance. The University's policy relating to age
and service eligibility requirements for continuation of health insurance coverage shall be waived
for Dr. Spanier at the conclusion of his presidency.

4, Disability Coverage. In the event of Dr. Spanier’s permanent disability

AI‘,:
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coverage, having a total disability benefit of (a) not less than eighty percent (80%) of his Base
Salary for the contract year in which he bec
Agreement, and (b) thereafter not less than sixty-five percent (65%) of his Base Salary for the
contract year in which he becomes disabled until age 70. Any amounts received by Dr. Spanier
under the terms of any long term disability plan applicable to senior executives shall be offset
against the amounts payable to Dr. Spanier pursuant to the disability coverage provided in this

Section E 4.

5. Professional Development and Post-Presidency Transition. Upon the

completion of the Term of this Agreement (June 30, 2015) or if this Agreement is terminated
without Cause, Dr. Spanier shall be entitled to a paid one year professional development and
post-presidency transition period at the level of his then presidential Base Salary plus the benefits
provided in Sections E.1, E.2, E3 and E.4 of this Agreemcnt; The post-presidency transition
period shall commence immediately upon the completion of the Term, or the effective date of

termination if this Agreement is terminated without Cause. During said period, Dr. Spanier shall
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perform scholarly activities in preparation to assume active duties as a tenured member of the
University’s faculty and shall also be available to assist with various University efforts (such as
fundraising and recruiting) as requested by the new President. As a condition of his eligibility
for compensation and benefits under this Section E.S, Dr. Spanier shall refrain from performing
any type of professional services for any other institution of lﬁghcr education that will conflict
with his duties with Penn State University. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any professional

services performed by Dr. Spanier for a non-profit emtity, government service, or for-profit

earnings. The terms of this Section E.5 shall survive the expiration of this Agreement.

6. Post-Presidency Faculty Position. Fol_lowing his service as President, Dr.
Spanier shall have the title of Presidenf Emeritus. In addition, Dr. Spanier shall conﬁpue to hold
a tenured faculty position as a Professor in the Department of Human Development and Family
Studies of the College of Health and Hu.man Dcvelopm‘cﬁt of the University. He may continue to
use his current academic title of Professor of Human Development and Family Studies,
Sociology, Demography, and Family and Community Medicine. Upon the conclusion of Dr.
Spanier's service as Présidcnt, he may, at his option, elect to assume the title of University
Professor. Dr. ASpanievr’s Base Salary following his services as President shall be paid on a
twelve month basis and shall be $600,000 annually. Dr. Spanier’s compensation at this level
shall be limited to five (5) years following the conclusion of his professional development

transition period subsequent to the termination of his presidency on June 30, 2015 or the earlier
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termination of his presidency without Cause. Dr. Spanier’s employment as Professor subsequent
to this period, including his eligibility for annual salary adjustments, shall be governed by the
University’s policies, rules and regulations applicable to other tenured members of the University
faculty and not by this Agreement. Dr. Spanier’s office location, academic responsibilities, and
salary after the five year post-presidency bcriod shall be determined in consultation with the
Provost of the University.
The University shall provide Dr. Spanier with administrative support,

a staff assistant to assist him wi
conclusion of his presidency. The terms of this Section E.6 shall survive the expiration of this
Agreement.

7. Travel and Other Business Expenses. Dr. Spanier’s reasonable travel and
other busine‘ss expenses incurred in his capacity as President of the University shall be paid on a
cost reimbursement basis through the University’s annual operating budget. When Dr. Spanier’s
spouse accompanies him on travel for University purposes, the University shall cover the costs of
her reasonable travel expenses. The expenses of Dr. Spanier and his spouse shall be reviewed on
an annual basis by the President of the Board of Trustees or his’/her dcsigﬁee who does not report
to the President.

8. Professional Memberships. The University shall pay the annual dues

and membership fees for the President in professional associations of benefit to the University.

9. Automobile. The University shall continue to provide Dr. Spanier with a
recent model automobile suitable for his role as President, to be owned or leased by the

University, for his exclusive use. The University shall provide or reimburse Dr. Spanier for
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insurance, maintenance, and other operating costs of the vehicle, including but not limited to, the
cost of fuel, taxes, liéenscs, registration, and other similar operating expenses. On an annual
basis, Dr. Spanier shall report all personal use in writing to the Senior Vice President for Finance
and Business of the University.

F. Housing,

During the Term of this Agreement, for the benefit and convenience of the University in

having the functions of the Office of President efficiently discharged and, in order to enable Dr.

.

County, Pennsylvania, or such other residence as may be determined by the University (the
“President’s Residence™). The University shall pay for all costs of utilities and maintenance of

the structures and grounds of the President’s Residence.

For the benefit and convenience of the University, the President’s residence shall be
available, and shall be used, for University-related business on a regular and continuing basis.

Costs associated with such University events shall be borne by the University.

In the event of Dr. Spanier’s death during the Term of this Agreement (including all
renewals and extensions), Dr. Spanier’s family shall be permitted to occupy the President’s
Residence under the same terms and conditions for no less than 90 calendar days from the date of

Dr. Spanier’s death.
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In the event of Dr. Spanier’s permanent disability during the Term of this Agreement
(including all renewals and extensions), Dr. Spanier and his family shall be permitted to occupy
the President’s Residence under the same terms and conditions for no less than 90 calendar days

from the date of Dr. Spanier’s permanent disability.

Dr. Spanier and his family shall vacate the President’s Residence no later than thirty (30)
calendar days following the effecﬁve date of termination or expiration of this Agreement
(including all renewals and extensions).

Upon the termination of this Agreement, the University shall reimburse Dr. Spanier for
the reasonable and necessary expenses of moving his personal property from State College,
Pennsylvania to a location of his choic;e in the continental United States.

G.  Tax Reporting.

The University shall include in the W-2 issued to Dr. Spanier all payments, benefits,
allowances, and reimbursements that are defined as income or otherwise required to be reported
by federal, state or local governments. Except as provided in this Agreement, Dr. Spanier shall

sible for th
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1. Termination For Cause. The University may terminate this Agreemenf at
any time for cause upon written notice to Dr. Spanier as provided in this Section H.1. For
purposes of this Agreement, the term “Cause” shall mean conduct reasonably determined by a
two-thirds majority of the Board of Trustees to be: (a) gross negligence or willful malfeasance by

Dr. Spanier in the performance of his Duties that materially harm the Uﬁiversity; (b) actions or

-11-
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omissions by Dr. Spanier that are undertaken or omitted knowingly and are criminal or
fraudulent and involve material dishonesty or moral turpitude; or (c) Dr. Spanier being formally
indicted in a court of law of any felony, or any other crime involving misuse or misappropriation
of University funds. In the event the President is terminated for Cause, Dr. Spanier’s
employment as President shall cease immediately, and hé shall not be entitled to any further
compensation or benefits as President, exﬁept as set forth in the University’s various benefit
plans with respect to vesting and rights after termination of employment, nor shall he be entitled
t

continuine emnlovment
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Faculty Position set forth in Section E.6 of this Agreement.

2. Termination Without Cause. The University may terminate this
Agreement without Cause upon a majority vote by the Board of Trustees at any tirﬁe for the
convenience of the University upon ninety (90) calendar days prior written notice to the
President. Termination of this Agreement by virtue of the President’s permanent disability or
death (as set forth in Sections H.4 and H.5 of this Agreement, respectively) shall not be

construed as termination without Cause. If the University terminates this Agreement without

avments egual to his then

from the effective date of his termination of employment as President, plus the Equivalency
payment referenced in Section C.5 of this Agreement. In the event of such termination without
Cause, Dr. Spanier and his family shall vacate the President’s Residence no later than thirty (30)

calendar days following the effective date of termination.

-12-
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3. Resignation. Dr. Spanier may resign as President by providing at least
ninety (90) calendar days written notice to the President of the Board of Trustees. Dr. Spanier’s
employment as President shall cease on the effective date of his resignation, and he shall not be
entitled to any further compensation or benefits as President, except as set forth in the
University’s various benefit plans with respe& to vesting and rights after termination of

employment.

4, Permanent Disability. If Dr. Spanier shall become permanently disabled
during his service as President, this Agreement shall terminate effective on the date of permanent
disability and he shall receive all benefits to which he is entitled pursuant to the University’s
disability coverage referenced in Section E.4, plus the Equivalency payment referenced in

Section C.5 of this Agreement.

For purposes of this Agreement and based upon Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code,.“Pcnnanent Disability” shall mean Dr. Spanier is (i) unable to engage in any
substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental
impairment which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous
period of not less than 12 months or (ii) by reason of any medically determinable physical or
mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a
continuous period of not less than 12 months, receiving income replacement benefits for a period

of not less than 3 months under an accident and health plan covering the University’s employees.
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vent of Dr. Spanier’s death during the Term of this

Agreement, Dr. Spanier’s Base Salary shall cease immediately and this Agreement shall
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terminate effective on the date of death, provided however that the Equivalency payment

referenced in Section C.5 of this Agreement shall be paid to Dr. Spanier’s estate no later than

thirty (30) days from the date of death.
L Outside Activities.

The University recognizes that it is both appropriate and beneficial for Dr. Spanier, in his
capacity as President to engage in outside activities, such as serving on for-profit and nonprofit
boards of directors, consulting, delivering speeches, and writing. However, the President shall

seek prior approval from the President of the Board of Trustees before agreeing to serve on the

. .,
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that conflicts with his Duties under this Agreement.

All income or other compensation eamed by Dr. Spanier in connection with his outside
activities shall be paid to and retained by Dr. Spanier and reported in accordance with applicable
tax law and established University policy. Such income, if any, shall have no effect on the
amount of salary, benefits, or other compensatipn to which Dr. Spanier may be entitled to under

this Agreement.

J. Indemnification. The University shall indemnify Dr. Spanier and hold him
harmless against legal fees, expenses, judgments, and other financial amounts incurred while
serving in his capacity as President of the University to the extent permitted by law. Dr. Spanier

shall continue to be indemnified subsequent to termination of employment as President with
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respect to acts or omissions occurring while he was serving as President. The terms of this

Section J shall survive the expiration of this Agreement.

K. Mediation. The parties agree that any controversy or claim that either party may
have against the other arising out of or relating to the construction, application or enforcement of
this Agreement, as well as any controversy or claim based upon the alleged breach of any legal
right relating to or arising frozﬁ Dr. Spanier’s employment and/or termination of his employment
shall be submitted to non-binding mediation. Within fifteen (15) days after delivery of a written
notice of request for mediation from one party to the other, the dispute shall be submitted to a
single mediator located in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania chosen by the parties, and the
venue for such mediation ;hall be in University Park or State College, Pennsylvahia, as mutually
agreed by the parties. The costs and fees associated with mediation, excluding attomey’s fees for

Dr. Spanier, shall be borne by the University.

L. Notice.
Any notice or other communication contempiated by this Agreement shall be deemed to
be given when given in writing and mailed, registered or certified, postage prepaid with return

receipt requested, to a party at the address set forth below or such other address as may hereafter

be designated in writing:
To Dr. Spanier: . Dr. Graham B. Spanier
Schreyer House .
Pennsylvania State University
University Park, PA 16802
-15-
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The Pennsylvania State University
To the University: Office of the Board of Trustees
) 205 O1d Main
University Park, PA 16802
Attention: President of the Board of Trustees

M. Severability and Waivers.

If any portion of this Agreement shall be held to invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable,
then, so far as possible, effect shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion held invalid,
inoperative, or unenforceable, and the remainder of this Agreement not found invalid,
inoperative, or unenforceable shall remain in full force and effect. No waiver or failure to'
enforce any or all rights under this Agreement by either party on any occasion shall constitute a
waiver of that party’s right to assert the same or any other rights on that or any other occasion.

N.  Goveming Law.

This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the

laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, excluding its choice of laws rules.

0.  Counterparts,
Th

deemed an original but all of which shall constitute but one of the same instrument. Sigpatures

. A —

delivered by facsimile and by email shali be deemed t0 be an original signature for all purposes,
including for purposes of applicable Rules of Evidence.

P.  Complete Agreement.

This Agreement fully supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings, written

or oral, with the exception of Section D.3 of the Prior Agreement as amended by Section C.5 of

-16-

EXHIBIT D



this Agreement. This Agreement shall not be amended, modified, or changed other than by

express written agreement of Dr. Spanier and the President of the Board of Trustees.
Q. Personal Contract.

The obligations and duties of Dr. Spani_er shall be personal and not assignable or
delegable in any manner whatsoever. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of Dr. Spanier and his executors, administrators, heirs, successors, and pcﬁnitted assigns,

and upon the University and its successors and assigns.
R. No Trust Fund.

‘ Nothing‘contained in this Agreement and no action taken pursuant to the provisions of

rights shall be no greater than the right of any unsecured, general creditor to the University.
S. Miscellaneous.

The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be used in
construing or interpreting this Agreement. The terms “Board,” “Board of Trustees,” and
“University” as used in this Agreement, where applicable or appropriate, shall be deemed to
include or refer to any duly authorized board, committee, officer, or employee of said entity.
Whenever the context requires, the masculine shall include the feminine and neuter, the singular

- shall include the plural, and conversely.

-17-
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Employment Agreement as of

the day and year written below.

ATTEST:

) Dy

Witness

ATTEST:

Witness § ¥ ;

THE PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY

nv _/96 Z ﬂ / M

« S SN ¢

Presﬁent Board of Trustees

g\ﬂu— ':/ o/0
Défe S

Graham B. Spanier, Pﬁé

M Q X0/ D
Dgte
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Testimony at Sandusky trial shows missed chances | Fox News Page 1 of 6
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Testimony at Sandusky trial shows missed chances

Published June 18, 2042 [ 0
Assoclaled Press

The eyewitness testimony that confronted jurors in Jerry Sandusky's child-molestation trial this week was disturbing not only for
its graphic descriptions of sex with boys, but for what it sald about the people who surrounded and maybe even protected the
once-revered Penn State assistant coach,

ALt ol smeo otal bathio -

Eight accusers took the witness stand and described how Sandusky moiested ifem in campus showers, hotel bathrooms, a
basement bedroom, & sauna used by the football team — right under the noses of his friends, colleagues, family members and
acquaintances.

The Sandusky story, the way autharities have framed it, is one littered with missed chances 1o stop a rapist who preyed on
chiidren for years.

Prosecutors have hinted that top university officials knew far maore about Sandusky's alleged proclivities than they have (et on.
submitting a document Monday that says Penn State's former vice president — himself facing charges related to the scandal —

maintained a file on Sandusky a decade ago. A Penn State trustee toid The Associaied Press he now suspects a cover-ug.

Yet evidence and testimony from the trial also show there were plenty of people, not just those at the highest levels of the
university, who had ample opportunity to stop @ man accused of viciating 10 boys over 15 years:

— A janitor failed to tell authorities he allegedly caught Sandusky performing oral sex on @ boy in a campus shower a dozen
years ago.

— A district attorney with a reputation for prosecuting cases involving children and sexuat abuse victims declined to charge

Sandusky over a 1888 molestation alfegation even though the detective who investigated thought it was a solid case, The DA,

Ray Gricar, disappeared in 2005 and was declared iegally dead last year.

— School district officials were skeptical of abuse claims brought by the young man known in court papers as Victim 1 because,
the accuser testified, Sandusky was considered to have a "heart of goid." Victim 1's allegations eventuatly triggered the state
investigation that produced charges.

— One accuser testified he screamed out for help at least once when Sandusky's wife, Dottie, was in the house. He doesn’t
know whether she heard his cries.

— And, famously, coaching assistant Mike McQueary saw Sandusky having what he believed to be anal sex with & young bay in
2001. But his report to Athletic Director Tim Curley and Vice President Gary Schultz went nowhere. McQueary's dad testified that
during a conversation, Schultz said he was suspicicus of Sandusky, and NBC reported this week that emails between former
university President Graham Spanier and Schultz aiming to keep McQueary’s allegation from going further were tumed over to
the attorney general.

http://www.foxnews.com/us/2012/06/16/psu- trial-shows-missed-chances-cover-up-suspe... 12/18/2015
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— Others also saw Sandusky engaging in behavior that was at least odd, if not criminal. Longtime assistant coach Ton Bradley
walked into the shower when one boy was with Sandusky, the accuser testified, and 2 wrestling coach told jurors he saw
Sandusky and a child rolling on the floor.

- Several accusers said their parents or caregivers failed to grasp what was happening to them. Victim 4 testified that one
weekend he did not want to go with Sandusky and told his mather, "I'm pretty sure he's gay," but she dismissed the idea. "She
said, oh, whatever, this is just one of your fies,* he told jurors. He also said at one point he told his grandmother to tell Sandusky
he wasn't home when he called.

Victim 1 testified that when he asked his mother about "a website for people who do things to children," and she asked why, he
said it was “to see if Jerry was on there." He said he didn‘t think she totally understood. And Victim 9 told jurors he described
Sandusky to his mother as "a touchy-feely type of a person,” but she pressured him fo spend time with the former coach.

Keith Masser, 2 Penn State trustee, said in an interview that he initially thought the scandal was about a failure of administrative
oversight of the football program. Now he suspects it goes deeper.

When the board of trustees ousted Spanier on Nov. 9, four days after Sandusky's arrest, it was "because we didn't have
confidence in his ability to lead us through this crisis,” Masser said. "We had no idea (at the time) he wouid be invoived in a
cover-up."

Masser stressed he was speaking for himself and not the board at targe. and said he wants to be careful not to draw premature
conglusions. But he said it now appears like "top administration officials and top athletic officials were involved in making the

LRONGUESYT e S210 20pears O ad!

dacision to not inform the proper authornities.”

With prosecutors focused on the sex-abuse allegations against Sandusky, the trial isn't intended to yield evidence of a possible
cover-up. That's the job of Louis Freeh, the former FBI director hired by the board of trustees to investigate the scandal, His
report could be released in late summer.

Spanier, who has not been charged with any crime, did not respond to email and phone messages. His attorney did not return a
phone call.

The law firm defending Curley and Schultz against charges they lied in their grand jury testimony and failed to report suspect
abuse said in a statsment this week they "conscientiously considered” McQueary's account and “deliberated about haw ta
respansibly deal with the conduct and handle the situation properly.” They did not respand to follow-up questions posed by the
AP.

Masser said the Freeh investigation is helping Penn State get to the bottom of the scandal.

*| hope the truth comes out, and from & board standpolnt it was Judge Freeh's investigation that found these emails that relate
Spanier, Curley and Schultz to the suspected cover-up,” he said. "I want the alumni to understand and the stakeholders to
understand that this independent investigation is uncovering this information.”

Sandusky was charged in November and December with more than 50 counts of abuse. The scandal brought disgrace to Penn
State and led to the ousters of both Spanier and Paterno, the Hall of Fame coach who died in January at age 85.

The testimony of eight of the 10 alleged victims named in a grand jury report prompted disgust and revulsion from Penn State
alumni and others who took to Twitter last week to express their dismay — and to call for the heads of anyone involved in
concealing abuse. "Anyone who knew and didn’t report should bumn!" tweeted one.

The grim depictions of abuse also hit at least one former player hard.

The accuser known as Victim 4 told jurors that Sandusky let him wear star linebacker LaVar Amington's jersey and gave him a
magazine autographed by the former NFL All-Pro, who played at Penn State in the late 1890s.

http://www.foxnews.com/us/2012/06/16/psu-trial-shows-missed-chances-cover-up-suspe... 12/18/2015
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Arrington apologized to the man a day after his testimony, writing in The Washington Post that he felt awful for having missed the
warning signs.

“He always seemed mad or kind of distant. | remember distinctly asking him: "Why are you always walking around afl mad, like a
tough guy?" Arrington wrote. "} guess with everything that t had going on, it certainly wasn't a priority for me to iry i figure him
out.”

Arrington continued, "} hate everything that has happened, and now { must admit | feet even worse, knowing what allegedly was

[P P WP | "
happening 50 close to we, and that | was unawars.

Ann Tenbrunsel, a professor of business ethics at the University of Notre Dame, attributes the faiture to stop Sandusky {0 a
phenomenon she calls "motivated blindness," a tendency, whether subconscious or deliberate or sometimes both, to ignore
unethical or even criminal behavior by others when you perceive it to be in your best interest to do so. Motivated blindnass
“means | don't probe, | don't ask, | don't believe,” Tenbrunsel said. "t have evidence in front of me but choose fo disregard facts.”

Some people could have kept quiet about their suspicions because they wanted to protect Penn State and its beloved — and
highly lucrative — football program, or their own jobs, she said. Others might not have wanted to believe the sainted Sandusky
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"you have al! kinds of examples of people who either did not notice, or when they did notice didn't engage in behaviors that
would have stopped it because it wasn't in their best interests to do $0," said Tenbrunsel, co-author of "Blind Spots." 2 book that
explores why otherwise decent peopie sometimes fail to do the right thing.

Some of the alleged assaults appear to have been interrupted, if unwittingly. One young man said Sandusky coerced him into
engaging in oral sex in a hotef bathroom in Texas around the time of the 1959 Alamo Bowt — Sandusky's iast game before
retiring — stopping only when the coach’s wife entered the hotel room. The same accuser, Victim 4, testified about another
occasion in which Bradiey was showering in the team headquarters while the alleged victim and Sandusky were behind a curtain

in another stall.

"l can't say what (Bradley's) thoughts were, but think he was suspicious of something because he stayed in the shower untit
everything was done," the man testified without slaborating.

Bradley did not return several messages from The Associated Press.

A wrestiing coach told jurors that he found Victim 1 and Sandusky rotling around on the floor in the high schoot weight room one

sovraien o

EVEBNING.

Jaseph Miller said that while he found it add, he gave the tamed coach & pass. "It was Jerry. Jerry Sandusky. He's a saint. What
he's doing with kids, it's fantastic,” Miller recalled thinking. “So | didn't think anything of it.”

The trial is scheduled to enter iis fifth day Monday as prosecutors near
saying that while he showered with boys, he never touched them sexuall
the truth because they intend to sue.

usky denies ail the charges

ol
wa it an i t1IgeS,

) cky
. His attomey has suggested the accusers are twisting

= Z

Associated Press writers Mark Scolforo and Genaro C. Armas in Bellefonte, Pa., contributed to this report.

http://www.foxnews.com/us/2012/06/1 6/psu-trial-shows-missed-chances-cover-up-suspe... 12/18/2015
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), entered into by and between The
ennsylvania State University, the only land grant university chartered in the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania, and Graham B. Spanier, Ph.D., is to take effect July 1, 2010.

WITNESS
WHEREAS, Graham B. Spanier, Ph.D. (“Dr. Spanier” or the “President™) has been
employed by The Pennsylvania State University (the “University”) as President of the University
since September 1, 1995; and .
WHEREAS, the University wishes to continue the employment of Dr. Spanier as
President of the University in recognition Qf his extraordinary' achievements, and Dr. Spanier
wishes to continue to serve as the President and be its employee, subject to the terms and

conditions of this Agreement; and
WHEREAS, The University desires to make further arrangements which will suitably

recognize the extraordinary responsibilities and duties of Dr. Spanier and will reward him for his

WHEREAS, both the University and Dr. Spanier intend this Agreement to supersede any
and all prior agreemcrﬁs with respect to Dr. Spanier’s employment relationship, with ﬁue
exception of Section D.3 of the Employment Agreement effective fuly 1, 2007 (the “Prior
Agréement”); and .

WHEREAS, both the University and Dr. Spanier desire to set forth their respective rights
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and obligations in this Agreement; and
January 23, 1982, the Board of Trustees of the University
(the “Board of Trustees™) authorized the Pfgsident of the Board of Trustees (the “President of the
Board”) to enter into employment agreements with certain senior employees in accordance with
the terms of said Resolution; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions
contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufﬁciency of which are
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

A Tem

The University shall continue the employment of Dr. Spanier as its President for a term
from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015 (the "Term"), except as provided in éection H
(“Termination™). Dr. Spanier hereby accepts such employment upon the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement.

B.  Powers and Duties.

During the Term of this Agreement, Dr. Spanier shall serve as President and perform

the authority of the Board of Trustees consistent with his position as President of the University,
including those duties as are set forth in the Resolution of the Board of Trustees adopted on June
11, 1970, as amended on November 19, 1971, May 30, 1975 and September 23, 1977, and as the

same may be amended from time to time during the term of this Agreement (collectively, the

EXHIBIT D



“Duties”). Dr. Spanier shall devote his full business time aitention, skill and efforts to the

Dr. Spanier and the Board of Trustees acknowledge and agree that the Duties hereunder
shall be limited to those duties customarily performed by presidents of universities compara
size and mission to the Univeréity, such as educational leadership, faculty and community
relations, budgeting, long range planning, fund raising, development, public relations, student
services, recruitment and retention of personnel, and such other duties as may be authorized or
directed, from time to time, by the Board.

Dr. Spanier shall'scrve as a member of the Board of Trustees of the University 4nd as a
corporate officer of the University so long as such service is provided for in the Corporate
Charter or Bylaws of the University.

C. Compensation.

1. Annual Base Salary. As compensation for the services to be performed by
Dr. Spanier pursuant to this Agreement aﬁd in accordance with industry norms, the University
shall pay to Dr. Spanier an annualized base salary of $700,000 from July 1, 2010 through June

SL&A P

50, 2011 (the “Base Salary”), less applicable deductions. Any increases in Base Salary shall be
v ing fiscal year in connection with the
annual evaluation of his performance, set forth in Section D of this Agreement. During the Term
of this Agreement, Dr. Spéni_er’s Base Salary may be increased, but not decreased.

| 2. Signing Bonus. In consideration of executing this Agreement, Dr. Spanier

Agreement by both parties.
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3. Retention_Incentive.  Beginning with the 2011-12 contract year,' Dr.
tive provided that he completes
service as President to the University through the end of each contract year (June 30). Thg
amount of the retention incentive, if any, shall be at the sole discretion of the Compensation
Council in accordance with the 1982 resolution of the Board of Trustees authorizing the Council
regarding such compensation matters, but shall not exceed twenty percent (20%) of Dr. Spanier’s
then-currgnt annual.base salary. Any retention incentive awarded to Dr. Spanier shall be paid
within sixty (60) days of the conclusion of the contract year to which it relates. ,

4, Retirement Contribution. In addition, the University shall contribute, at its
normal Alternate Retirement Plan (the “Retirement Plan™) contribution rate (currently 9.29%), to
the purchase of an annuity contract within the meaning of Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code and in accordance with the terms of the Retirement Plan as managed by TIAA-CREF.
- Further, in the event that:

a.  limitations of the Internal Revenue Code do not permit the

Plan at its normal contribufion rate; or

b. fess than fifteen (15%) percent of Dr. Spanier's Base Salary is
contributed to Dr. Spanier's Retirement Plan, the University shall
pay to Dr. Spanier, as current compensation, an amount equal to
the difference between the amount. actually contributed to the
Retirement Plan and the greater of: (1) the amount that the

University cannot contribute to the Retirement Plan because of
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Internal Revenue Code limitations; or (2) fifteen (15%) percent of
Dr. Spanier's Base Salary.

5. Retirement Plan Equivalency. The  Retirement  Plan Equivalency
referenced in Section D.3 of the Prior Agreement shall continue during this Agreement. The
Retirement Plan Equivalency shall be amended such that Dr. Spanier shall be required to remain
available to perform services for the University pursuant to Sections B, E.5 and E.6 of this
Agreement through June 30, 2017 to vest in the benefits of the plan. Dr. Spanier shall also
become vested in the Retirement Plan Equivalency if his employment ‘as President is earlier
terminated without Cause, or his death or disability. Dr. Spanier. shall not receive the benefits of
the Retirement Plan Equivalency if his employment as President is terminated for Cause, or if he
voluntarily resigns from his employment as President, or if following the conclusion of his
service as President, his faculty appointment is terminated in accordance with the University’s
rules for tenured members of the faculty. A document separate and apart from this Agreement

shall govern the five year extension of the Retirement Plan Equivalency to June 30, 2017.

o
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No later than the week of the May 2011 meeting of the Board of Trustees, and each year
thereafier, Dr. Spanier shail provide to the President of the Board of Trustees, the Vice President
of the Board, the immediate past President of the Board and the Chairperson of the Commi;tee
on Finance and Physical Plant of the Board (the “Review Group”) an assessment of his
performance as President measured against the goals and objectives for the then-current fiscal
year, as well as his proposed goals and objectives for the next fiscal year. The Review Group

will review and provide abpropriate feedback and direction with respect to Dr. Spanier’s past

EXHIBITD



performance and future goals and objeétives. To aid the Review Group in its annual evaluation,

Dr S nniar noras tA fnq-’nnh
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the Board such additional oral or written reports

as the Review Group may request.

E. Benefits and Reimbursements.

L. Standard Benefits. Dr. Spanier shall be eligible to participate in all of the
employee benefit plans of the University applicable to senior executives.

2. Supplemental Life Insurance.

a. In addition to life insurance provided as a standard benefit in
Section E.1, the University has provided a life insurance death

benefit of $1,000,000 for Dr. Spanier since September 1, 1997,
The death benefit of this life in;urance policy has escalated, and
shall continue to be escalated annvally on each July 1 during the
Term of this Agreement, by the percentage increase in the
Consumer Price Index (CPI-U, All Items, for All Urban
Consumers, 1984=100) by multiplying the amount of life
insurance in force for the contract year then ending by the sum of:
one (1), plus the cumulative percentage increase in the Consumer
Price Index between July 1 of the prior year and June 30 of the
current year. There will be no dim‘inution of this life insurance
benefit at the conclusion of the Term of this Agreement. Provided,
however, CPI increases in the death benefit shall cease as of the

conclusion of the Term of this Agreement. In all other respects,
-6-
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this life insurance coverage shall be maintained in accordance with

for its senior executives.
3. Suppiemenial Health Insurance. The University's policy relating to age
and service eligibility requirements for continuation of health insurance coverage shall he waived

for Dr. Spanier at the conclusion of his presidency.

4. Disability Coverage. In the event of Dr. Spanier’s permanent disability

during the Term of this Agreement, the University shall provide Dr. Spanier with disability
coverage, having a total disability benefit of (a) not less than eighty percent (80%) of his Base
Salary for the contract year in which he becomes disabled through the end of the Term of this
Agreement, and (b) thereafter not less than sixty-five percent (65%) of his Base Salary for the
contract year in which he becomes disabled until age 70. Any amounts received by Dr. Spanier
under the terms of any long term disability plan applicable to senior executives shall be offset
against the amounts payable to Dr. Spanier pursuant to the disability coverage provided in this
Section E.4.

5. Professional Development and Post-Presidency Traﬁsition. Upon the

post-presidency
provided in Sections E.1, E.2, E.3 and E.4 of this Agreement'. The post-presidency transition
period shall commence immediately upon the completion of the Term, or the effective date of

termination if this Agreement is terminated without Cause. During said period, Dr. Spanier shall
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perform scholarly activities in preparation to assume active duties as a tenured member of the

fundraising and recruiting) as requested by the new President. As a condition of his eligibility
for compensation and benefits under this Section E.’, Dr. Spanier shail refrain from performing
any type of professional services for any other institution of lﬁgher education that will conflict
with his duties with Penn State University. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any professional
services performed by Dr. Spanier for a non-profit entity, government service, or for-profit
boards that do not materially detract from his University responsibilities shall not be considered a
conflict with his duties for the University. The Base Salary and benefits that Dr. Spanier
receives under this Section E.5 shall not be reduced by the amounts he receives from other
earnings. The terms of this Section E.5 shall survive the expiration of this Agreement.

6. Post-Presidency Faculty Position. Following his service as President, Dr.
Spanier shall have the title of Prg:sideni Emeritus. In addition, Dr. Spanier shall contipue to hold
a tenured faculty position as a Professor in the Department of Human Development and Family

Studies of the College of Health and Human Development of the University. He may continue to

use his current academic title of Professor of Human Development and Family Studies,

twelve month basis and shall be $600,000 annually. Dr. Spanier’s compensation at this level

shall be limited to five (5) years following the conciusion of his professional development

transition period subsequent to the termination of his presidency on June 30, 2015 or the earlier
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termination of his presidency without Cause. Dr. Spanier’s employment as Professor subsequent
to this period, including his eligibility for annual salary adjustments, shall be governed by the
University’s policies, rules and regulations applicable to other tenured members of the University
faculty and not by this Agreement. Dr. Spanier’s office location, academic responsibilities, and
salary after the five year post-presidency beriod shall be determined in consultation with the
Provost of the University.

The University shall provide Dr. Spanier with administrative support,
including an office and a staff assistant to assist him with his responsibilities following the
conclusion of his presidency. The terms of this Section E.6 shall survive the expiration of this
Agreement.

7. Travel and Other Business Expenses. Dr. Spanier’s reasonable travel and
other busine'ss expenses incurred in his capacity as President of the University shall be paid on a
cost reimbursement basis through the University’s annual operating budget. When Dr. Spanier’s

spouse accompanies him on travel for University purposes, the University shall cover the costs of

8. Professional Memberships. The University shall pay the annual dues
and membership fees for the President in professional associations of benefit to the University.

9. Automobile. The University shall continue to provide Dr. Spanier with a
recent model automobile suitable for his role as President, tQ be owned or leased by the

University, for his exclusive use, The University shall provide or reimburse Dr. Spanier for
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insurance, maintenance, and other operating costs of the vehicle, including but not limited to, the

basis, Dr. Spanier shall report all personal use in writing to the Senior Vice President for Finance
and Business of the University.

F. Housing.

During the Term of this Agreement, for the benefit and convenience of the University in
having the functions of the Office of President efficiently discharged and, in order to enable Dr.
Spanier to fully perform the extensive duties of his positioh, he shall, as a condition of his
employment as President of the University, continue to reside at the Schreyer House, an on-
campus residence owned by the University for this purpose, located at University Park, Centre
County, Pennsylvania, or such other residence as may be determined by the University (the
“President’s Residence”). The University shall pay for all costs of utilities and maintenance of

the structures and grounds of the President’s Residence.

For the benefit and convenience of the University, the President’s residence shall be
available, and shall be used, for University-related business on a regular and continuing basis.

Costs associated with such University events shall be borne by the University.

In the event of Dr. Spanier’s death during the Term of this Agreement (including all

Residence under the same terms and conditions for no less than 90 calendar days from the date of

Dr, Spanier’s death.

-10-
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In the event of Dr. Spanier’s permanent disability during the Term of this Agreement
d extensions), Dz. Spanier and his family shall be permitted to occupy

the President’s Residence under the same terms and conditions for no less than 90 calendar days

from the date of Dr. Spanier’s permanent disability.

Dr. Spanier and his family shall vacate the President’s Residence no later than thirty (30)
calendar days following the effecﬁvc date of termination or expiration of this Agreement
(including all renewals and extensions).

Upon the termination of this Agreement, the University shall reimburse Dr. Spanier for

3 1 Fomann Qimtn Moo
the reasonable and necessary expenses of moving his personal property from State College,

Pennsylvania to a location of his choice in the continental United States.

Q
E
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The University shall include in the W-2 issued to Dr. Spanier all payments, benefits,
allowances, and reimbursements that are defined as income or otherwise required to be reported
by federal, state or local governments. Except as provided in this Agreement, Dr. Spanier shall
be responsible for the payment of all personal taxes due and shall make such payments on a
“when due” basis.

H.  Teumination.

L. Termination For Cause. The University may terminate this Agreemenf at
any time for cause upon written notice to Dr. Spanier as provided in this Section H.1. For
purposes of this Agreement, the term “Cause” shall mean conduct reasonably determined by a
two-thirds majority of the Board of Trustees to be: (a) gross negligence or willful malfeasance by

Dr. Spanier in the performance of his Duties that materially harm the Urﬁversity; (b) actions or

-11-
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omissions by Dr. Spanier that are undertaken or omitted knowingly and are criminal or
fraudulent and involve material dishonesty or moral turpitude; or (¢} Dr. Spanier being formally
indicted in a court of law of any felony, or any other crime involving misuse or misappropriation
Jniversity funds. In the event the President is terminated for Cause, Dr. Spanier’s
employment as President shall cease immediately, and he shall not be entitled o any further
compensation or benefits as President, eicept as set forth in the University’s various benefit
plans with reépect to vesting and rights after termination of employment, nor shall he be entitled

to continuing employment as a member of the University faculty, including the Post-Presidency

Faculty Position set forth in Section E.6 of this Agreement.

2. Termination 'Without Cause. The University may terminate this

Agreement without Cause upor a majority vote by the Board of Trustees at any time for the

death (as set forth in Sections H.4 and H.5 of this Agreement, respectively) shall not be
~construed as termination without Cause. If the University terminates this Agreement without
Cause prior to the cxpira11:0n of the Term of this Agreement, Dr. Spanier shall be entitled to
receive payments equal to his then existing Base Salary and benefits for cighteen (18) months
from the cffective date of his termination of employment as President, plus the Equivalency
paymeﬁt referenced in Section C.5 of this Agreement. In the event of such termination without
Cause, Dr. Spanier and his family shall vacate the President’s Residence no later than thirty (30)

calendar days following the effective date of termination.

-12-
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3. Resignation. Dr. Spanier may resign as President by providing at least
ninety (90) calendar days written notice to the President of the Board of Trustees, Dr. Spanier’s
employment as President shall cease on the effective date of his resignation, and he shall not be
entitled to any further compensation or benefits as President, except as set forth in the
University’s various benefit plans with reSpect to vesting and rights after termination of

employment.

<
2
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4. Permanent Disability. If Dr. Spanier shall become permanent

during his service as President, this Agreement shall terminate effective on the date of permanent

disability and he shall receive all benefits to which he is entitled pursuant to the University’s

For purposes of this Agreement and based upon Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Codc,"‘Permanent Disability” shall mean Dr. Spanier is (i) unable to engage in any
substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental
impairment which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous

period of not less than 12 months or (ii) by reason of any medically determinable physical or

mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a
continuous period of not less than 12 months, receiving income replacement benefits for a period

of not less than 3 months under an accident and health plan covering the University’s employees,

5. Death. In the event of Dr. Spanier’s death during the Term of this

Agreement, Dr. Spanier’s Base Salary shall cease immediately and this Agreement shall

-13-
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terminate effective on the date of death, provided however that the Equivalency payment
all be paid to Dr. Spanier’s estate no later than

thirty (30) days from the date of death.

I Outside Activities.

rTY_*

The University recognizes that it is both appropriate and beneficial for Dr. Spanier, in his
capacity as President to engage in outside activities, such as serving on for-profit and nonprofit
boards of directors, consplting, delivering speeches, and writing. However, the President shall
seek prior approval from the President of the Board of Trustees before agreeing to serve on the
board of directors of any for-profit entities. Dr. Spanier may not engage in any outside activity

that conflicts with his Duties under this Agreement.

All income or other compensation eamed by Dr. Spanier in .connection with his outside
eported in accordance with applicable
tax law and established University policy. Such income, if any, shall have no effect on the

amount of salary, benefits, or other compensation to which Dr. Spanier may be entitled to under

this Agreement.

J. Indemnification. The University shall indemnify Dr. Spanier and hold him
harmless against legal fees, expenses, judgments, and other financial amounts incurred while -
serving in his capacity as President of the University to the extent permitted by law.. Dr. Spanier

shall continue to be indemnified subsequent to termination of employment as President with

=h
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respect o acts or omissions occurring while he was serving as President. The terms of this

Section J shall survive the expiration of this Agreement.

K. Mediation. The parties agree that any controversy or claim that either party may
have against the other arising out of or relating to the construction, application or enforcement of
this Agreement, as well as any controversy or claim based upon the alleged breach of any legal

right relating to or arising from Dr. Spanier’s employment and/or termination of his employment

mmonwealth of Pennsylvania chosen by the parties, and the
venue for such mediation shall be in University Park or State College, Pennsylvama, as mutually
agreed by the parties. The costs and fees associated with mediation, excluding attorney’s fees for

Dr. Spanier, shall be borne by the University.

L.  Notice.
Any notice or other communication contemplated bv this Agreement shall be deemed to

be given when given in writing and mailed, registered or certified, postage prepaid with return

be designated in writing:
To Dr. Spanier: . Dr. Graham B. Spanier
Schreyer House
Pennsylvania State Umvers1ty
University Park, PA 16802
-15-
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o The Pennsylvania State University
To the Umver§1ty: Office of the Board of Trustees

ANE NI RL_
LUJ U Lvialil

University Park, PA 16802
Attention: President of the Board of Trustees

M. Severability and Waivers.

If any portion of this Agreement shall be held to invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable,
then, so far as possible, effect shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion held invalid,

inoperative, or unenforceable, and the remainder of this Agreement not found invalid,

waiver of that party’s right to assert the same or any other rights on that or any other occasion.
N. Governing Law.
This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the

laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, excluding its choice of laws rules.

0. Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original but all of which shall constitute but one of the same instrumcnt. Signatures
delivered by facsimile and by email shall be deemed to be an original signature for all purposes,

including for purposes of applicable Rules of Evidence.

P.  Complete Agreement.

This Agreement fully supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings, written

or oral, with the exception of Section D.3 of the Prior Agreement as amended by Section C.5 of

-16-
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this Agreement. This Agreement shall not be amended, modified, or changed other than by

Q. Personal Contract.

The obligations and duties of Dr. Spanier shall be personal and not assignable or
delegable in any manner whatsoever. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of Dr. Spanier and his executors, administrators, heirs, successors, and permitted assigns,

and upon the University and its successors and assigns.
R. No Trust Fund.

. Nothing‘contained in this Agreement and no action taken pursuant to the provisions of
this Agreement shall create or be construed to create a trust of any kind. To the extent that the
President acquires a right to receive payments from the University under this Agreement, such

rights shall be no greater than the right of any unsecured, general creditor to the University.

w
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The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be used in
construing or interpreting this Agreement. The terms “Board,” “Board of Trustees,” and
“University” as used in this Agreement, where applicable or appropriate, shall be deemed to
include or refer to any duly authorized board, committee, officer, or employee of said entity.

Whenever the context requires, the masculine shall include the feminine and neuter, the singular

- shall include the plural, and conversely.
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the day and year written below.

ATTEST:

A,MA ld\. y

Wltness V 7

ATTEST:

is Employment Agreement as of

THE PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY

vy oo £ ude

Presﬁent Board of Trustees

,Ovuz, 2 os0
Dé(e ST
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